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Michael H. Artan (State Bar No. 97393)
One Wilshire Boulevard, Suite 2200
Los Angeles, California 90017

Tele: 213/688-0370 Fax: 213/627-9201
Email: michaelartan@yahoo.com
Counsel for Defendant

Koan You Lay

SUPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORNIA
COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO

PEOPLE OF CALIFORNIA, Case Number FSB1502254

Plaintiff, DEFENDANT KOAN YOU LAY’S
V. MOTION TO SUPPRESS WIRETAP
EVIDENCE; POINTS AND
KOAN YOU LAY, AUTHORITIES; and DECLARATION OF
COUNSEL

Defendant. Date: August 25, 2015
Time: 8:30 a.m.
/ Department S12

TO THE CLERK OF COURT, PARTIES AND COUNSEL:

THIS IS NOTICE that on August 25, 2015, in Department S12, at 8:30 a.m., defendant Koan
You Lay will move this Court for an order suppressing the wiretap evidence in this case and all
evidence derived from the suppressed wiretap evidence. This motion is based on the papers and
pleadings on file, this motion, the attached Declaration of Michael H. Artan, Points and Authorities
and such further argument or evidence as the Court may hear.

Respectfully submitted,

e WA
Michael H. Artan

Counsel for Defendant
Koan You Lay

Dated: August 14, 2015
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MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES
IN SUPPORT OF MOTION TO SUPPRESS

I. INTRODUCTION

Courts and Congress have long recognized the intrusive nature of wiretaps and have placed
specific and narrow limitations on their use. Among these limitations are:

° Restrictions as to which public officials are empowered to apply for
wiretap authority; and

. Jurisdictional requirements that the wiretap authorizations may be
issued by courts where the listening post is sited or where the
telephone calls are made from.

Both these limitations were plainly violated in the wiretaps utilized in this case:

First, an unauthorized applicant was the signatory in each of the wiretap applications at hand.
Cases in which authorization are obtained in state court derive from federal wiretap authorization in
which “the principal prosecuting attorney” of a state or political subdivision may apply for an order
authorizing a wiretap. See 18 U.S.C. § 2526(2). Under this process, California Penal Code section
629.50 specifically limits those public officials authorized to apply for the wiretap order as follows:

Each application for an order authorizing the interception of a wire or
electronic communication shall be made in writing upon the personal oath
or affirmation of the Attorney General, Chief Deputy Attorney General, or
Chief Assistant Attorney General, Criminal Law Division, or of a district
attorney, or the person designated to act as district attorney in the district
attorney's absence, to the presiding judge of the superior court or one
other judge designated by the presiding judge. (Emphasis added.)

The wiretap applications at hand were prepared and presented by the Riverside County District
Attorney’s office over the course of seven months. Each wiretap application supplied by the People is
signed by Jeffrey A. Van Wagenen Jr., Assistant District Attorney, with the claim that he was “the
Riverside County District Attorney’s designee, as defined in California Penal Code section 629.50(a).”

This claimed designation does not meet the legal requirements of Penal Code section 629.50(a). The
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District Attorney for Riverside County was Paul Zellerbach throughout the period in question and he
was legally required to sign each of the wiretap applications. The only exception to this requirement
would be that Mr. Zellerbach was absent and his designee was “an assistant district attorney duly
designated to act for all purposes as the district attorney.” United States v. Perez-Valencia (9" Cir.
2013) 727 F.3d 852, 855.

There is no indication in the discovery provided that Mr. Zellerbach was absent during any
point during the seven month period of the wiretap applications, nor is there any indication that Mr.
Van Wagenen was the acting district attorney during that period. Mr. Van Wagenen therefore lacked
the authority defined in Penal Code § 629.50 to apply for the wiretap orders.

The second failure arises from a lack of jurisdiction. Two alternative grounds exist for a court
to issue wiretap orders. Either the target telephone is based in the jurisdiction of the court, or the
listening post is within the court’s jurisdiction. The affidavit supporting the wiretap application
identifies these two grounds.

The affidavit states: “The Listening post will be in Los Angeles County.” (Artan Decl. Exhibit
B 10:16) The Affidavit also acknowledges that the target telephone “is mostly used near LAY and
TAN’s business in Long Beach, California.” (Artan Decl. Exhibit B 13:17-21) There is no suggestion
in the application, or even subsequent events, that the target telephone was ever used in Riverside
County, or even any calls were made to Riverside County.

The wiretap applications were therefore invalid for two separate and apparent reasons. Because
the orders authorizing the wiretaps were illegally obtained, it follows that the wiretap evidence and the
evidence derived from that evidence should be suppressed.

II. PROCEDURES AND FACTS RELEVANT TO THIS MOTION
A. The Charges at Hand

Mr. Lay is charged in the complaint with seven counts related to three alleged money laundering
transactions. The charges are: Countl—Health & Safety Code section 11370.6(a)—possession of
money over $100,000 obtained in conjunction with controlled substance sales; Count 2—Penal Code
section 182(a)(1)—Conspiracy as to possession of money over $100,000 obtained in conjunction with

controlled substance sales; Count 3—Health & Safety Code section 11370.6(a)—possession of money
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over $100,000 obtained in conjunction with controlled substance sales; Count 4—Penal Code section
182(a)(1)—Conspiracy as to possession of money over $100,000 obtained in conjunction with
controlled substance sales; Count 5—Health & Safety Code section 11370.6(a)—possession of money
over $100,000 obtained in conjunction with controlled substance sales; Count 6—Penal Code section
182(a)(1)—Conspiracy as to possession of money over $100,000 obtained in conjunction with
controlled substance sales; and Count 7—Health & Safety Code section 11352(a)—sale of controlled
substance.
B. The Initial Application

The initial wiretap application is signed by Jeffrey A. Van Wagenen Jr., Assistant District
Attorney, with the claim that he was “the Riverside County District Attorney’s designee, as defined in
California Penal Code section 629.50(a).” (Artan Decl., Exhibit A)There is no indication in the
application that Paul Zellerbach, the actual District Attorney for Riverside County, was absent from the
County, or that Mr. Van Wagenen was the acting District Attorney in such absence.

This initial application incorporates by reference an Affidavit in Support of the Application
executed by Drug Enforcement Administration Special Agent Jesse E. Odum. (Artan Decl., Exhibit B)

In the process of reporting to the federal government on the wiretap, forms were executed by the
issuing court and by the prosecutor’s office. (Artan Decl., Exhibit C) In each of the forms, a space
appears for “DAAG Name (Fed Cases Only).” (“DAAG” would refer to the Deputy Assistant Attorney
Generals authorized by the federal wiretap statute in federal court applications.) In the space provided,
each form is filled in: “JEFF VAN WAGENEN, ADA”, Despite the requirement in the form that
designated agents are only to be used in federal cases, and despite the plain language of Penal Code
section 629.50, the Riverside prosecutors used an unauthorized applicant for each of the wiretap
applications.

C. The Jurisdictional Recitation in the Original Affidavit

Generally stated, the Odum affidavit accompanying the first wiretap application seeks issuance

of a wiretap of Koan You Lay’s cell phone (562-353-005) based on suspicion that Lay was involved in

transfers of cash in support of a drug trafficking organization that included various individuals.
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(“Original Affidavit”™—Artan Decl., Exhibit B 2:26-3-6) None of these individuals conducted any
activities within Riverside County.

The Original Affidavit includes a recitation of law and facts which purport to justify the issuance
within the jurisdiction of the Riverside Superior Court. The law set forth in this section acknowledges
that the initial interception or listening post should be in the jurisdiction of the issuing court. (Artan
Decl., Exhibit B 7:11-8:11) The Original Affidavit adds the following language, which is misleading:

“(See also United States v. Ramirez (7™ Cir. 1997) 112 F.3d 849, cert
denied 522 U.S. 892, 118 S. Ct. 232, 130 L.Ed.2d163 [Holding that a
judge, sitting in the jurisdiction where the target subject lived and where
the criminal conduct was occurring, could issue a wiretap order for a
cellular telephone which was thought to be used by the target regardless of
where the phone or listening device was.” (Emphasis added.) (Artan Decl.,
Exhibit B 8:11-16)

The recitation concerning Ramirez is misleading for three reasons. First, the case is not
controlling here in the Ninth Circuit. Second, even though the listening post and the cell phone was sited
in Minnesota, the government believed that the cell phone was going to be used in the issuing district,
the Western District of Wisconsin, at the time of the original application. Third, the prosecution was
investigated and the prosecution was pursued in the issuing district, which is also where the criminal
conduct occurred.

To justify issuance of the warrant in Riverside County, the Original Affidavit includes a
narrative of claims that do not fit any jurisdictional theory. This claimed conduct centers on Arturo
Rivas, a co-defendant who is accused of picking up drug money from Lay’s jewelry store in Long
Beach, and who had no activities in Riverside. Rivas was described as “a courier for a yet fo be
identified drug trafficking organization.” (Emphasis added.) (Artan Decl., Exhibit B 7: 6-9: 4-26)

Rivas’s telephone was apparently used to call 562-755-2462. In turn, the 562-755-2462 number
had received calls from two suspected drug dealers, one of whom had a nightclub in Moreno Valley
which was believed to be frequented by drug cartel members. The theory in the Original Affidavit was

that Rivas may be conducting illegal activities in Riverside because he lived in Fontana, which is “in
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close proximity” to the nightclub in Moreno Valley. (Artan Decl., Exhibit B 9: 4-26) A Google map
search reveals that the “close proximity” between the two locations is 22 miles.

The narrative also seeks to bolster its jurisdictional claim because two of the subjects of the
investigation, Lim Van Brugen and Ting Lin, took trips to Morongo Casino in Riverside, a location
“used to launder narcotics proceeds.” (Artan Decl., Exhibit B 10: 1-4)

The Original Affidavit states: “The Listening post will be in Los Angeles County.” (Artan
Decl., Exhibit B 10:16) The Original Affidavit also acknowledges that the target telephone “is mostly
used near LAY and TAN’s business in Long Beach, California.” (Artan Decl. Exhibit B 13:17-21)
There is no indication the target telephone was ever used in Riverside County, or even that any calls
were made to Riverside County.

D. The Subsequent Applications

The subsequent applications provided in discovery are signed by signed by Mr. Van Wegenan,
and all contain the same language that he was “the Riverside County District Attorney’s designee, as
defined in California Penal Code section 629.50(a).” These subsequent applications do not include any
language suggesting that Mr. Zellerbach was absent or that Mr. Van Wegenan was acting District
Attorney in his absence.

The subsequent applications include affidavits by reference, and these affidavits contain the
same jurisdictional narratives as the Original Affidavit.

Each of the subsequent applications includes a request to continue the wiretap of Koan You
Lay’s cell phone (562-353-005)

III. THE WIRETAP ORDERS WERE ILLEGALLY OBTAINED
A. The Motion to Suppress is Procedurally Authorized
Penal Code section 629.72 authorizes a motion to suppress wiretap evidence as follows:
Any person in any ftrial, hearing, or proceeding, may move to suppress
some or all of the contents of any intercepted wire or electronic
communications, or evidence derived therefrom, only on the basis that the
contents or evidence were obtained in violation of the Fourth Amendment

of the United States Constitution or of this chapter. The motion shall be
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made, determined, and be subject to review in accordance with the
procedures set forth in Section 1538.5.
Penal Code section 1538.5 (a)(1) describes the circumstances in which a motion to suppress is
properly presented:

A defendant may move for the return of property or to suppress as
evidence any tangible or intangible thing obtained as a result of a search or
seizure on either of the following grounds:

(A) The search or seizure without a warrant was unreasonable.

(B) The search or seizure with a warrant was unreasonable because
any of the following apply:

(i) The warrant is insufficient on its face.

(ii) The property or evidence obtained is not that described in the
warrant.

(iit) There was not probable cause for the issuance of the warrant.
(iv) The method of execution of the warrant violated federal or state
constitutional standards.

(v) There was any other violation of federal or state constitutional
standards.

B. The Applicant Was Not Authorized
California Penal Code section 629.50 defines those authorized to apply for wiretap order as
follows:
Each application for an order authorizing the interception of a wire or
electronic communication shall be made in writing upon the personal oath
or afﬁrmafion of the Attorney General, Chief Deputy Attorney General,
or Chief Assistant Attorney General, Criminal Law Division, or of a
district attorney, or the person designated to act as district attorney in

the district attorney's absence, to the presiding judge of the superior
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court or one other judge designated by the presiding judge. [Emphésis
added.]

Each of the wiretap applications were prepared and presented by the Riverside County District
Attorney’s office. The applications spanned the course of seven months. Each wiretap application is
signed by Jeffrey A. Van Wagenen Jr., Assistant District Attorney, with the claim that he was “the
Riverside County District Attorney’s designee, as defined in California Penal Code section 629.50(a).”
This designation does not meet the legal requirements of Penal Code section 629.50(2). The District
Attorney for Riverside County was Paul Zellerbach throughout the period in question and he was
therefore required to sign each of the wiretap applications. The only exception to this requirement
would be that Mr. Zellerbach was absent and his designee was “an assistant district attorney duly
designated to act for all purposes as the district attorney.” United States v. Perez-Valencia (9" Cir.
2013) 727 F.3d 852, 855.

Nothing indicates that Mr. Zellerbach was absent during any point during the seven month
period of the wiretap applications, nor is there any indication that Mr. Van Wagenen was the acting
district attorney during that period. Mr. Van Wagenen therefore lacked the authority defined in Penal
Code § 629.50 to apply for the wiretap orders.

8 The Issuing Court Did Not Have Jurisdiction

Penal Code section 629.52 describes the jurisdictional requirements of a wiretap as .
follows:

“Upon application made under Section 629.50, the judge may enter an ex
parte order, as requested or modified, authorizing interception of wire or
electronic communications initially intercepted within the territorial
Jurisdiction of the court in which the judge is sitting, if the judge
determines, on the.basis of the facts submitted by the applicant, all of the
following...” (Emphasis added.)

Jurisdiction for federal issuance of a wiretap is based on 18 U.S.C. § 2518(3) and confers
authorization on a court to authorize the “interception of wire, oral or electronic communications

within the territorial jurisdiction of the court in which the judge is sitting.”
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The jurisdictional standard has been succinctly stated as follows: “The most reasonable
interpretation of the statutory definition of interception is that an interception occurs where the tapped
phone is located and where law enforcement officers first overhear the call.” United States v. Luong
(9" Cir. 2006) 471 F3d 1107.

In Luong, the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals further cited United States v. Rodriguez (2d Cir.
1992) 968 F.2d 130, 136 and United States v. Ramirez (7™ Cir. 1997) 112 F.3d 849, 852, for the
conclusion “that an interception occurs in the jurisdiction where the tapped phone is located, where the
second phone in the conversation is located, and where the scanner used to overhear the call is
located.” Luong, supra.

None of these jurisdictional factors are met in the affidavits supporting the applications
for wiretaps. The initial target telephone was used in and around Long Beach, California. The
listening post was in Los Angeles County. The proper jurisdiction for the issuing court should
have been Los Angeles Superior Court, not the Riverside Superior Court.

Any claim that jurisdiction is supported by suspected illegal activity in Riverside County does
not comport with the jurisdictional requirements that are recognized statutorily and in case law, as
stated above. The factual assertions in the Original Affidavit do not demonstrate a nexus between the
target telephone and any activities in Riverside County. The drug trafficking organization attributed to
Rivas was “yet to be identified,” he was living in San Bernardino County (Fontana) and his alleged
illegal conduct would only have taken place in Long Beach (Los Angeles County). The jurisdictional
claim is not aided by the suggestion that he lived “in close proximity” to El Rodeo Nightclub—which
is twenty-two miles away—and involved no direct telephone contact. Finally, to attribute jurisdiction
because two of the suspects went to Morongo Casino is complete speculation and lacks good faith.

It follows that the orders authorizing the wiretaps were unauthorized and should be suppressed.

IV. THE EVIDENCE DERiVED FROM THE ILLEGAL WIRETAPS
MUST ALSO BE SUPPRESSED

The exclusionary rule prevents introduction of evidence obtained in violation of the United
States Constitution. The exclusionary rule applies to evidence gained from an unreasonable search or

seizure in violation of the Fourth Amendment, see Mapp v. Ohio, 367 U.S. 643 (1961) An extension of
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the exclusionary rule affirmed in Wong Sun v. United States (1963) 371 U. S. 471 and first recognized in
in Silverthorne Lumber Co. v. United States (1920) 251 U.S. 385 (1920), provides that evidence
obtained with the assistance of illegally obtained information must be excluded from trial. It follows that

any evidence derived from the wiretaps must be suppressed.

V. CONCLUSION
For the above reasons, the Court should issue an order suppressing the wiretap evidence in this
case and all evidence derived from the suppressed wiretap evidence.

Respectfully submitted,

: WA~
Dated: August 14, 2015 o5

Michael H. Artan
Counsel for Defendant
Koan You Lay
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DECLARATION OF MICHAEL H. ARTAN

I, Michael H. Artan, declare:

1. Iam counsel for the defendant in this case. I make this declaration in support of the
above motion to suppress. Unless otherwise stated, I have personal knowledge of the facts set forth
below, and if called to testify, I could and would testify to the truth of these facts.

2.  Attached as Exhibit A is a true copy of the initial application for a wiretap as provided in
the discovery for this case, which is incorporated by reference.

3. Attached as Exhibit B is a true copy of the Affidavit in Support of the Application
executed by Drug Enforcement Administration Special Agent Jesse E. Odum as provided in the
discovery for this case, which is incorporated by reference (“Original Affidavit”).

4.  The Original Affidavit states that Arturo Rivas lived “in close proximity” to the El
Rodeo nightclub in Moreno Valley. A Google map search reveals that the “close proximity” between
the two locations is 22 miles by road. [Discovery provided indicates Rivas’s residence in Fontana,
which is not being stated at this time out of respect for Mr. Rivas’s privacy, and an online search
provides the nightclub address as 24805 Alessandro Boulevard, Moreno Valley.]

5.  Attached as Exhibit C is a true copy of federal reporting forms as provided in the
discovery for this case, which is incorporated by reference.

6.  There is no indication in the discovery provided that the target telephone was ever used
in Riverside County, or even that any calls were made to Riverside County.

7.  The subsequent applications provided in discovery are signed by signed by Mr. Van
Wegenan, and all contain the same language that he was “the Riverside County District Attorney’s
designee, as defined in California Penal Code section 629.50(a).” These subsequent applications do not
include any language suggesting that Mr. Zellerbach was absent or that Mr. Van Wegenan was acting
District Attorney in his absence.

8.  The subsequent applications provided in discovery include affidavits by reference, and

these affidavits contain the same jurisdictional narratives as the Original Affidavit.
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9.  Each of the subsequent applications includes a request to continue the wiretap of Koan
You Lay’s cell phone (562-353-005).
I declare under penalty of perjury that the above is true and correct and that his declaration is
executed at Los Angeles, California, on August 14, 2015.
-—--:—---l M

Michael H. Artan
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PAUL E. ZELLERBACH
DISTRICT ATTORNEY
COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE
Deena M. Bennett

Deputy District Attorney
3960 Orange St.

Riverside, California 92501

Telephone: (951) 955-5400
Fax: (951) 955-9673

IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE
IN THE MATTER OF THE APPLICATION
OF THE DISTRICT ATTORNEY OF THE

COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE FOR AN ORDER

)  WIRETAP NO. 13-310

%
AUTHORIZING THE INTERCEPTION OF ) APPLICATION

)

)

)

WIRE, PAGER AND ELECTRONIC
COMMMUNICATIONS

Target Telephone #1 — 562-353-0005 )

APPLICATION PURSUANT TO PENAL CODE SECTION 629.50, Et Seq.

I, Jeffery A. Van Wagenen Jr., Assistant District Attorney for the County of Riverside, declare:

1. . Applicant is the District Attorney of the County of Riverside, Paul E. Zellerbach. I
am the Riverside County District Attorney’s designee, as defined in California Penal Code
section 629.50(a).

' After reviewing the Affidavit In Support Of Application For An Order Authorizing
The Interception Of Wire And Electronic Communications of United States Department of
Justice, Drug Enforcement Administration (DEA) Special Agent (SA) Jesse E. Odum, and relying
thereon, I approve making this Application and hereby apply to the Riverside County Superior
Court for authorization to intercept wire, pager and electronic communications to and from the
communication devices (the "Target Device(s)") described below. The Aﬁidavit. is attached
hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. _

3. Applicant hereby assigns Deputy District Attorney Deena M. Bennett, or her
substitute, to physically present this Application to the Court and to make the required periodic

reports required by Penal Code section 629.60. i
Application — Wiretap #13-310
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4, SA Odum, assigned to DEA Southwest Border Initiative Group 4, is the law
enforcement officer seeking authorization to intercept wire and electronic communications
pursuant to Penal Code Section 629.50(a). He is certified by the California State Attorney
General's Office in wiretaps, as set forth in the Affidavit.

5. Pursuant to Penal Code Section 629.50(a)(2), the DEA Los Angeles Field
Division, Southwest Border Initiative Group 4 is the agency that will execute this Order and,
pursuant to Penal Code Section 629.50(a)(3), LAFD Spccial Agent in Charge Anthony D.
Williams, reviewed the Affidavit and approves this Application (see Review of the Chief
Executive Officer filed herewith).

6. Based on my review of the Affidavit, I believe there is probable cause to conclude
the Target Subjects as set forth in the Affidavit have committed, are committing, and will
continue to commit the crimes of H.S. 11370.6(a): Possession of Money or Instruments over
$100,000, H.S. 11370.9(a): Proceeds Derived from Controlled Substance Offenses and P.C.
182(a)(1): Conspiracy to Commit a Crime. I further believe that the Target Device is being used
by the Target Subject(s) and/or their known and unknown associates and co-conspirators to
facilitate those offenses and that communications concerning their illegal activities will be
obtained through this interception.

7. Pursuant to Penal Code Section 629.5 0(a)(4)(C),.foliowing are particular
descriptions of the device(s) from which the communications are to be intercepted and their
locations:

a. Target Telephone #1 is a United Statés based T-Mobile telephone.
Target Telephone #1 is subscribed to KOANYOU LAY 3919 ROCK LANDING WAY, SEAL

. BEACH, CA, 90740. Target Telephone #1 has a current telephone number of 562-353-0005

and is used primarily by Koan you LAY and Howard TAN.

8. The actual interception and monitoring post will be in Los Angeles County.

. The communications to be intercepted are wire and electronic communications
between the Target Subjects and other known and unknown associates and/or co-conspirators
concerning the offenses set forth above, as set forth in Penal Code Section 629.52(a).

10.  Ihave been informed and believe that conventional investigation techniques have

2
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been attempted without success or reasonabiy appear too dangerous or unlikely to succeed if
attempted, as set forth in the Affidavit. '

11,  Due to the ongoing nature of the conspiracy related to the above offenses, and
because there is probable cause to believe that multiple communications related to those offenses
will occur during the course of interception and monitoring, I request that authority to maintain
this intercept be granted for thirty (30) days and request that the authority not be deemed to
automatically terminate upon interception of the first communication of the type described above.

12.  Irequest that this Court order Sprint Nextel Corporation, Boost Mobile, Pacific
Bell Company, Virgin Mobile, SBC, Verizon Communications, AT&T, AT&T Wireless, Verizon
Wireless, Cellco Partnership doing business as Verizon Wireless, T-Page Plus Communications,
Inc., Cingular Wireless, Nextel Communicatiqns, Sprint Specﬁ‘tmz, L.P., Sprint-Nextel, Metrocall,
PageNet, Weblink Wireless, T-Mobile and any other telephone, long distance, calling card,
paging, cellular, wireless or other telecommunications service providers, subsidiaries, or entities
(the “Telecommunications Companies™), upon request of law enforcement, to provide the
technical assistance necessary to accomplish the interception unobtrusively and with a minimum
of interference with the services being provided to the people whose communications are to be
intercepted and shall provide caller identification where possible. The Telecommunications
Companies shall be compensated by the agency executing the Court Order for the reasonable
costs of furnishing the facilities and technical assistance.

13.  Irequest this Court to order the Telecommunications Companies not to disclose to
the subscriber or any unauthorized person the fact that the Court has authorized this wiretap.

14.  Applicant requests this Application, Review, Affidavit, Order and any/all
incorporated documents, attachments, and/or exhibits be sealed and kept in the custody of the
agency executing the Court Order or the District Attorney's Office and to be disclosed only upon
a éhowing of good cause before a Judge of competent jurisdiction. (Penal Code Section 629.66)

15.  Iam unaware of any previous relevant wiretaps other than those set forth in the
Affidavit within the meaning of Penal Code Section 629.50(a)(6).

16. Applicant designates any California Department of Justice certified person(s),

selected and supervised by the investigative or law enforcement officer/agency, to provide

3
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linguistic interpretation for interception of wire, electronic digital pager and electronic cellular

telephone communications, pursuant to Penal Code Section 629.94.

[ declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the

foregoing is true and correct, except as to those matters declared on information and belief,

" which matters I believe to be true, and that this Application was executed in Riverside, California.

DATED: \2'l'\% -
: By: JEFFREY A_VAN WAGENEN JR.
ASSISTANA DISTRICT ATTORNEY
COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE

For: PAUL E. ZELLERBACH

DISTRICT ATTORNEY
COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE

4
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SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIF@RN]A
FOR THE COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE

IN THE MATTER GF 'rm: APPLICATION WIRETAP NO. 13-310

cow'r__ orams DE FOR AN ORDER AFFIDAVIT IN SUPPORT OF
' | TERCEPTION OF B wrsacwr ORDER AND

i AND NIC : -
cmmumcanoﬂs POSITIONING swsrm“(GPS}
o TRACKING AND/OR CELLULAR
Target Teleplione #1: 562-353-0005 SITE DATA

AFFIDAVIT IN SUPPORT OF APPLICATION
FOR AN ORDER AUTHORIZING THE INTERCEPTION OF ELECTRONIC
CELLULAR TELEPHONE COMMUNICATIONS
AND
AN ORDER OBTAINING GLOBAL POSITIONING SYSTEM (GPS) TRACKING
AND/OR CELLULAR SITE DATA

SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA
FOR THE COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE

I, Jesse B, Odum, being duly sworn, declare as tollows:

1. I'am a United States Drug Enforcement Administration (DEA) Special Agent {(SA) and 1
am an investigative or law enforcement officer of the United States within the meéaning of Section
2510(7) of Title 18 of the United States Code. | am empowered (o conduct investigations-and to
make arrests for federal felony offenses.

2. lamassigned to the Los Angeles Field Division (LAFD), Southwest Border Group 4

- (SWB-4). I have been appointed as a Special Agent by the DEA since July, 2012, Priorto

atteining sworn status as o Special Agent, [ was cmployed by DEA and received seventeen weeks
of training in controlled substance trafficking investigations and related legal matters, at the DEA
Quantico, Virginia Academy.

3. 1have received several hundred hours of comprehensive and specialized training
Conceming violations of the Controlled Substances Act contained within Title 21 of the United
States Code, while attending the DEA Training Academy in Quantico, Virginia. 1 have debriefed

1
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defendants and witnesses who had personal knowledge of major narcotics trafficking
organizations. Additionally, | have participated in many aspects of narcotics investigations:
including conducting physical surveillance and executing search warraiits.

4. Baged on my.training; experience and discussions with several senior DEA Agents, | am
familiar with nar¢otics traffickers” methods of operation including the distribution; storage, and
transportation of natcotics and the collection of money proceeds of narcotics trafficking: Iam
also familiar with methods employed by large narcotics organizations to thwart detection by law
enforcement, including the use of debit calling cards, public telephones, egllular telephone
technology, counter surveillance, false or fictitious identities, and encoded communications. To

successfully conduct these investigations, | have utilized a variety of investigative techniques and:

resources to include: database searches, physical surveillance and use of information obtained

iiimugh cooperating sources. Through these investigations, and my training and expérience, |
have become familiar with the methods used by traffickers to smuggle and safeguard narcotics, to
distribute narcotics, and to collect and launder related proceeds. My knowledge of these tactics,
which include the utilization of cellular telephone technology, counter surveillance, elaborately
planned smuggling schemes tied to Jegitimate businesses, false or fictitious identities, and coded
communications and conversations, has been particularly useful and relevant to this investigation.
5. Based on this investigation, set forth in detail below, 1 assert that there is probable cause
to believe that the Target Subjects (as defined below) have commiited, are committing, and are
about to commit H.S. 11370.6(a): Possession of Money or Instryments over $100,000, I1.S.
11370.9(a); Proceeds Derived from Controlled Substance Offenses and P.C. 182(a)(1):
Conspiracy to Commit a Crime, [ further assert there is probable cause to believe that wire
communications of the Target Subjects concemning the said offenses will be made over Target

Telephone #1 (562) 353-0005.

1,
THE TARGET SUBJECTS AND TARGET DEVICE(S)

6. This Affidavit is submitted in support of an Application for an Order authorizing the
interception of wire and electronic communications of this Southern California-based narcotics
proceeds courier organization (the Target Organization) including; Koan You LAY (“LAY™),

2
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Howardl TAN (“TAN"), Sophana LIM VAN BRUGEN (“LIM"}, Phi Thi Nguyen (“NGUYEN™),
Jennifer Ngoc Bich NGUEYEN-ITOW (“ITOW™), Xiubin Yu (“YU"), Marek Hyla (“HYLA"),
Ting Lin (“TING™), and Jia Lin (“LIN") (collectively, the *“Target Subjects); and other
unidentified co-conspirators, during the 30-day period of interception for which this:application is
submitted. It is believed that LAY and TAN arc using and will be using Target Telephone #1-
562-353-0005.

a. Target Telephone #1 is a T-Mobile cellular telephone, with sssigned
telephone number (562-353-0005), with International Mobile Subscriber Identity (“IMSI™)
310260250575874, subseribed to KOANYQU LAY 3919 ROCK LANDING WAY, SEAL
BEACH, CA, 90740, (hereinafter referred to as “Target Telephone #1"). The service for Target
Telephone #1 was initiated on October 6, 2009, Target Telephone #1 is believed to be used
primarily by LAY and TAN,

b. The term “Target Telephone™ also refers 1o any changed telephone number

assigned to the:same IMS] or Subscriber Identity Module (SIM).or Mobile Identification Number

(MIN) or Electronic Serial Numbers (ESN),.or Universal Flect Member Ideutifier (UFMI) ot

-MSID, and/or any changed TMSI or SIN or MIN or ESN, or UFMI or Mobile Station

Identification Number (MSID) assigned to the same telephone number and/or any changed
subseriber information with the same IMS! or SIN or MIN or ESN, or UFMI or MSID and the

same telephone number during the effective period of this order,

7. I'have attempled to obtain information concerning the Target Subjects from the
following sources and criminal indices: California Department of Motor Vehicles (DMV),
California Law Enforcement Telecommunications System (CLETS), National Crime Information
Center (NCIC), DEA/FBI records, public databases, reports of physical surveillance,
conversations with other agents and officers parlicipating in this investigation and my own
participation in the investigation. The following summarizes the information 1 have been able to
collect regarding the known Target Subjects of this investigation:

a. Koan You LAY (“LAY") is an Asian male, believed to be the primary user
of Target Telephone #1. Based on information learned during this investigation-and information

leared during an interview with an individual that picked up $100,000 of narcotics proceeds

3
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from KHMER SARMEY JEWELRY (KS JEWELRY STORE), LAY delivers laundered drug

| proceeds to couriers and runners, for eventual purchase of narcotics. LAY receives his directions

from unknown co-conspirators, Based on surveillanee and public database scarches, LAY is

‘believed to be residing at 3919 Rock Landing Way; Seal Beach, California. In public récords,

LAY is listed as the co-owner of KS JEWELRY STORE, 836 E. Anaheim Street, Long Beach,
California.
b. Howard TAN (“FAN") is an Asian male. Based on information learned

‘during this investigation and information learncd during an interview with an individual that
picked up $100,000 of riarcotics proceeds from KS JEWELRY STORE, TAN delivers

laundered drug proeeeds to couriers and runners, for eventual purchase of narcotics. Based on my
knowledge of this investigation, TAN receives his directions from unknown co-conspirators.
Based on surveillance and public database searches, TAN is believed to be residing-at 3919 Rock
Landing Way, Seal Beach, California. TAN works at KS JEWELRY STORE, 836 E. Angheim
Street, Long Beach, California.

c. Sophana LIM-VAN BRUGGEN (“LIM”) is an Asian female who is believed
to be involved in narcotics proceeds remitlance activities through her company, RUBY
JEWELRY. LIM has been identified as the CEO of RUBY JEWELRY in public databases, The
business phone number for RUBY JEWELRY and the cell phone subscribed to LIM at the same
address of RUBY JEWELRY has been in contact with Target Telephone #1. The business
phone of LIM at RUBY JEWELRY was listed on a suspicious package seized by U.S. Postal
Inspectors at the request of DEA on September 20, 2013, The package was addressed to NGOC
BICH JEWELRY and contained $40,650 of suspected narcotics proceeds, The business phone of
RUBY JEWELRY and the ccllular phone subscribed to LIM is in contact with Target Telephone

#1 and the business phone for NGOC BICH JEWELRY, Based on past activities of RUBY

JEWELRY, LIMand RUBY JEWELRY facilitate money transfers and deliveries, and
coordinates such money transfer and laundering activities with LAY, TAN, NGUYEN and the
other Target Subjects. Based on Georgia DMV database information, LIM resides at 1608
Danbury Parac Place NE, Atlanta, Georgia 30319,

d. Phi Thi NGUYEN ("NGUYEN™) is an Asian female who is believed to be

4
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involved in natcotics proceeds remittance activities through her company, PRECIOUS JEWELS
BY NGOC BICH (aka NEWPORT PRECIOUS JEWELS) (“NGOC BICH JEWELRY™).
NGUYEN is listed as the owner of NGOC BICH JEWELRY in public databases. The business
phone number for NGOC BICH JEWELRY has been in contact with Target Telephone #1.
Based on past activities of NGUYEN with NGOC BICH JEWELRY as wetl as suspicious.
financial activity by NGOC BICH JEWELRY, NGUYEN fucilitates money transfers and
deliveries; and coordinates such money transfer and laundering activities with LAY, On
September 20, 2013, at the request of DEA, U.S. Postal Inspectors seized a package addressed fo
NGOC BICH JEWELRY containing $40,650 of suspected narcotics proceeds. Baséd on law
enforcement database searches, NGUYEN is believed to beresiding at 6 Nerval Street, Newport
Beach; Califoria.

e. Jennifér Ngoe Bich Nguyen ITOW (“ITOW™) is an Asian female who is believed
to be involved in narcotics proceeds remittance activities through, PRECIOUS JEWELS BY
NGOC BICH (aka NEWPORT PRECIOUS JEWELS) (“NGOC BICH JEWELRY™). ITOW is
believed to be the daughter of NGUYEN and is listed as the co-signer on several NGOC-BICH
JEWELRY bank accounts. The business phone number for NGOC BICH JEWELRY has been in
contact with Target Telephone #1. Bascd on past activities of ITOW with NGOC BICH
JEWELRY as well as suspicious financial activity by NGOC BICH JEWELRY, ITOW facilitates
money transfers and deliverics, and coordinates such money transfer and laundering activities
with LAY, On September 20, 2013, U.S. Pastal Inspectors seized a package addressed to NGOC

BICH JEWELRY containing $40,650 of suspected narcotics proceeds. Based on law enforcement

database searches, ITOW is belioved to be residing at 8 Nerval Streel, Newport Beach, California,

f. Xiubin YU (*YU”) is an Asian female who has previously been identified
as the head of an a narcotics proceeds courier cell in Monterey Park, YU is believed to take
direction from the same individuals who direct LAY, to launder narcatics proceeds and provide
funds for the purchase of narcotics by HYLA and others. Based on surveillance, YU is believed
to be residing at 123 Roselyn Lane, Monterey Park, California (“ROSELYN LOCATION”). In
public records, YU is listed as the President of JERSON TRADE, JERSON TRADE is amoney

exchange business located at 127 S. Garfield Avenue, Suite A, Monterey Park, California,
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g Marek HYLA ("HYLA™), a Whitc Canadian male; has been identified by a DEA
Tucson Confidential Source (C1-1 as described herein) as an individual who transports what are
believed to be laundered narcotics proceeds from Los Angeles to Tucson, Arizona for the further
purchse of narcotics. HYYLA is further directly associated with a seizure of approximately 40
kilograms of simulated cocaine in Tucson, Arizona in November 2012, On April 17, 2013, DEA
Tucson seized $330,265 of narcotics proceeds from HYLA, which was concealed in the trunk of

' Jiis rental car. HYLA has been observed picking up funds from an unidentified Asian female,

possibly TING, and therefore is believed to take direction from the same individuals who direet

LAY, YU, and TING. HYLA is believed to be residing in Santa Monica, California,
h. TING Lin ¢*TING™) is an Asian fernale who is believed to be a likely money
courier. Shé is one of the registered owners of a black 2012 Dodge Challenger (“The

 Challenger”y observéd by DEA Agents during surveillance of a money pick-up by HYLA from

an unidentified Asian female on Pebruary 1, 2013, Based on surveillance, TING is believed lo
reside at the ROSELYN LOCATION (YU'’s address) and TING is also associated with the
address for JERSON TRADE (YU’s business). She was also intercepted by law enforcement
during a trip to/from Morongo Casino in Cabazon, California Qilh LIN, which was:likely related
to. Jaundering or delivering narcotics-related proceeds. During an interview with law enforcement
fesulting from that interception, TING stated that she was LINs sister. During an interview with
DEA Agents, TING admitted to delivering packages with LIN to unknown individuals at the
Hong Kong Supermarket. TING stated she did so at the direction of YU, but claimed to not know
what she was delivering. Based on her residence with YU, her association with JERSON
TRADE, and her participation in likely narcotics proceeds remittance activities, TING is believe
to take direction from the same-individuals who direet LAY, YU, and HYL,A, Based on
surveillance, TING is believed to be residing at the ROSELYN LOCATION.

i. Jia LIN (“LIN™) is an Asian male who is the brother of TING and believed also to
participate in narcotics proceeds remittance activities. LIN is another registered owner of the
Challenger, a vehicle which has been seen during money delivery operations, and was the driver
for a trip with TING to/from Morongo Casino in Cabazon, California. Based on my knowledge of

this investigation, the trip was likely related 1o laundering or delivering narcotics-related

1]
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proceeds, Based on surveillance, LIN is-believed to be residing at the ROSELYN LOCATION
(address of YU and TING) and was a past subscriber of utilities for JERSON TRADE (also
associated with YU and TING). Based on his apparent relationship with YU, TING, JERSON
TRADE, and his participation in likely narcotics proceeds remittance activities, LIN is believed
10 take direction from the same individuals who direct LAY, YU, TING, and HYLA.,

J. Arturo RIVAS (“RIVAS") is a Hispanic male money courier who picked up a
white U.S. Postal Box containing $189,780.00 of U.S. currency and a $100 counterfeit bill from
KHMER SARMEY JEWELRY STORE on November 7, 2013, Based on my knowledge of this
investigation RIVAS is a courier for a yet to be identified drug tiafficking organization,

o S e
COURT’S JURISDICTION
__ (Penal Code section 629.52)
8, California Penal Code section 629,52, in part, states “The-judge may enter an ex parte
order authorizing interception of wire, electronic page, or electronic cellular telephone

communications initially intercepted within the territorial jurisdiction of the court in which the

judge is sitting.” Section 629.52 does not define the phrase “initially intercepted.” However,

federal courts have ruled on similar language found in 18 USC 2518(3), which, at the time of the
rulings, stated, “the judge may enter an ex parte order ... authorizing or approving interception of
wire, oral, or elecironic communications within the territorial jurisdiction of the court in which
the judge is sitting.” In United States v. Rodriguez (2nd Cir. 1992) 968 F.2d 130, cert. denied 506
U:S. 847, 113 S.Ct. 140, 1212 L.Ed.2d 92, a federal magistrate of Southern District of New York

' issued an intereept order for the telephones of a cafe located in New Jersey. The defendants

conlended that the intercept order was improperly issued and argued that only a New Jersey
magistrate could issue an intercept order for a telephone located in New Jersey. The court
rejected the defendants’ contention and explained the jurisdiction issue as it pertains to intercept
orders. The court held “lor the purposes of [the] jurisdictional requirement, a communication is
intercepted not only where the tapped telephone is located, but also where the contents of the.
redirected communication are first to be heard." (Jd. al p. 136.) In United States v. Denman (5th

Cir. 1996) 100 F.3d 399, cert. denied 520 U.S. 1121, 117 S.Ct. 1256, 137 L.Ed.2d 336, the

B
Affidavit — Wirctap #13-310

i e e

P ——
sl it s S L gl B

T R




—

0 ~ & W R W N D D8 N L W N e O

_rq.-gp-;:c\m-.:a.-mu

defendants contended that the wiretap was jurisdictionally defective because it was authorized by
a judge outside the judicial district in which the defendants’ telephones were located, The
‘wiretap order was issued by a judge in the Eastern District of Texas where the calls were
monifored and reoordet_;l;_‘.the' tappéd telephones were located in Houston within the Southern
District of Texas. The court rejected the defendants’ contention and explained the jurisdiction
issuc as it pertains to intereept orders. The court held, “We agree with the reasoning of the
Second Circtit and now hold that the interception included both the location.of a tapped
telephione and the original listening post, and that judges in either jurisdiction have authority

aunder Title 111 to issue wiretap order. As the Rodriguez court noted, this interpretation aids an

important goal of Title 1, to protect privacy-interests, by enabling one judge to superyise an
investigation that spans more than one judicial distriet.” (/d. at pp, 4043-404.) (See also Unired
States v. Ramirez (Tth'Cir. 1997) 112 F.3d 849, cert. denied 522 U.S. 892, 118 S.Ct. 232, 139
L.Ed.2d 163 [Holding that a judge, sitting in the jurisdiction where the target subject lived and

where the criminal conduct was occurring, could issue a wirctap order for a cellular telephone

which was thought (o be used by the target subject regardless of where the phone or the listening

post was. }.)

9. The following facts establish jurisdiction in this matter-as it pertains to Target

Telephone #1 which is & United States based T-Mobile electronic cellular telephone, The

primary users of Target Telephone #1 are LAY and TAN:

10, DEA is investigating a drug trafficking and money laundering organization operating
in Mexico and throughout Scuthern California to include Los Angeles, San Bernardino, Riverside
and Orange Countics, among other locations. Specifically, the investigation targets narcotic drug
trafficking cells operating in the United States and Mexico whom are belicved to be responsible
for criminal activities, including but not limited to: (1) the transportation of narcotics from
countries of supply in Central and South America to Mexico; (2) the transportation of narcotics
throngh Mexico and into the United States; (3) the distribution of narcotics to the DTO’s
wholesale customers in the United States; and (4) the collection and (ransportation of nar¢otics
procceds. During this narcotics investigation scveral phone numbers were identified as being

associated with narcotics trafficking in the Southern California arca. Further investigation of

8
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1 | these telephone numbers have led to the identification of Target Telephone #1. The DTO is
2 | believed to be operating in Riverside County and throughout Southern California for an
3 | unidentified Mexico based DTO,
4 11, InFebruary 2013, LAFD SWB-4 initiated an investigation into the narcotics
5 | proceeds laundering activities of multiple Asian organizations in the Los Angeles metropolitan
6 | aren. DEA Agents have identified Koan You LAY, the owner of KS JEWELRY STORE, and
J 7 § Howard TAN. LAY and TAN, whoalso works at KS JEWELRY STORE, have used K8
| 8 | JEWELRY STORE to deliver narcolics proceeds o several tieribers of drug trafficking
9 | organizations. On September 23, 2013, DEA agents seized $100,000 from a Hispanic male afier
10 | be picked up the money from KS JEWELRY STORE. On November 7, 2013, DEA agents

' 11 | seized $189,780 and a $100 counterfeit bill from Arturo RIVAS after he picked up the money
12 from KS JEWELRY STORE. RIVAS was in possession of two cellular telephones,
13 12. OnNovember 235, 2013, 1 reviewed telephone tolls from RIVAS’ telephone number
14 (909-684-4622), According to toll data, RIVAS’ telephone was in contact with phone number
15 562-755-2462 on cight occasions between October 15, 2013 and October 18, 2013, DEA
16 Inteltigence Analyst (IA) Daniel Lodevico stated that this phone number is in contact with two
suspeeted drug traffickers inan active DEA investigation. This is investigation is being worked
with Riverside Police Department, The two suspects in contact with 562-755-2462 are Manuel
PALAMINO and Favio RANGEL. RANGEL is a promoter for EL RODEO nightelub, with

several lmatioﬁs; one location is in Moreneo Valley, California. EL. RODEO in Moreno Valley,

5
;? California is known to be frequented by members of'the Sinoloa drug cartel, when they visit the F
2 Los Angeles area from Mexico. IA Lodevico stated that RANGEL is a poly-drug trafficker and in u
- addition to trafficking narcoties, he also launders money. g

13, Based on my knowledge of this investigation, since RIVAS is in contact with the same ‘:
.24 phone number as two other drug traffickers, he may likely be linked to EL. RODEO in-Moreno E; 4
25 Valley, Califomia. RIVAS resides in Fontana. Due to the close proximity of RIVAS’ residence, E‘I
26 investigators concluded that he is conducting illegal activities in Riverside County. % .'
& 14, Even though LAY and TAN deliver money from their business in Long Beach, 15 ;_
28 California, it appears that the money is cventually used to purchase narcotics in Riverside County. :

9
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15. As deseribed in detail below; using GPS tracker data;, DEA agents tracked TING and
L[N in their vehicle to trips from Moniterey Park to the Morongo Casino in Riverside County.
Based on my knowledge of this investigation it appears that the Morongo Casino is one of the
locations used to launder narcotics proceeds,

16. Based on my training and experience, and factors described below, Riverside County
can be characterized as a central transportation hub, and corridor; for narcotics traffickers

eparting from, or aniving to, Mexico from other areas of California. Riverside County strétches
from-Orange County to the Colorado River, whic_h- formsthe state-t;prdc: with Arizona.

Furthermore, Riverside County lies inland of Los Angeles County @nd is bordered by Orange

County (o the west, San ‘Bernardino County to the north and San Diego County and Imperial

‘County to the south. Mﬁior’fﬁghways that operate thru Riverside County include Interstates 10,

15, 215 and State Routes 60, 91 and 111, The above referenced highways will lead to the other,

major counties of California previously mentioned. Because of these factots, Riverside County

‘can be characterized as a centralized transportation hub that pi‘_‘qyidés: a corridor between

California and Mexico.

17. The Listening post will be in Los Angeles County

IV,
PRIO PLICATIONS

18, On or about November 26, 2013, the DEA Electronic Surveillance Unit checked the
oral, wire, and electronic surveillance indices of DEA, FBl and ICE, which revealed that no other
applications have been miade to intercept oral, wire, or electronic communications involving the
Target Subjests and Target Telephone #1. Other than the prior applications mentioned below, I
know of no other applications that have been made to any court for authorization to intercept
wire, oral, or tI:lcctronjc communications involving any of the same persons, facilities, or places
specified in this-application.

a. LIN, TING, not further jdentificd, was named in a previous application authorizing
the intercepts of communications signed by United States District Court Judge of
the New York Southern District Court, 12/03/2004.

b. LIN, TING, not further identified, was named in a previous application authorizing

10
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| the intercepts of communications signed by United States District Court Judge of
2 the New York Southern District Court, 04/07/2005,
3 ¢.. LIN, TING, not further identified, was named in a previous application authorizing
4§ the intercepts of communications signed by United States District Court Judge
5 RICHARD OWEN of the New York Southern District Court, 04/07/2005,
6. d. Nguyen, Phi; not further identified, was named in a previous application
7 authorizing the intercepts of communications signed by United States District
g " Coust Judge Whelan, Thomas J, of the Califotiiia-Southern District Court,
9 12/19/2008,
10 e. Nguyen, Phi, not further identified, was named in a previous application
i.:l authorizing the intercepts of communications signed by United States District
12 : Court Iuc,lgc"Wh_el_an. Thomas J, of the California Southern District Court,
- 11/19/2008 .
14 f. Nguyen, Phi, not further identifiedl, was named in a previous application
15 authorizing the intercepts of communications signed by United States District
i6 Court Judge Whelan, Thomas J, of the California Southern District Court,
17 01 /27/2009.
18 g. NGUYEN, PHI, not further ideatified, was named in a previous application
19 authorizing the intercepts of communications signed by United States District
20 Court J udge THOMAS J. WHELAN, of the California Southemn District Court,
2 11/19/2008.
2 h. NGUYEN, PHI, not further identified, was named in a previous application
authorizing the intercepis of communications signed by United States District
. Court Judge JOHN L. KANE, of the Colorado District Court, 03/07/2007.
o 19, On December 2, 2013, I checked the California Department of Justice wiretap
- database to determine if other applications have been made to initinte a California State
= authorized wiretap intercept of the Target Telephonc or the Target Subjeci(s) and leamed other
# than those applications listed hereafter, no other applications have been made to initiate a
= California State authorized wiretap intercept of Target Telephone #1.
Affiduyit - W'ii‘clup #13-310
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FACTS ESTABLISHING PROBABLE CAUSE'

20. Tn November 2012, DEA Tucson initiated an investigation into a Canadian drug
trafficking organization' (“DTO"). During that investigation, DEA Tucson was able to develop
confidential source (“CI-1 ”jlwho provided information about thie activities of the organization
-and specifically discussed HYLA's connection to the organization. CI-1 indicated that HYLA
was:a courfer who picked:up money from Los Angeles. In February 2013, DEA Los Angeles
initiated an investigation into Asian narcotics proceeds couriers operating in the Los Angeles
area.

21. The Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) Orange County Office provided information
regarding the use of Target Telephone #1 and KS JEWLERY STORE. The FBI intercepted

“Target Telephone #1 during a 2010 wiretap investigation, in which a money pick up was

discussed.

22. Based on information learned during this investigation, DEA Agents have learned that
several _Asian-narcoﬁcs:ﬁmcgeds couriers are working together (o distribute narcotics proceeds to
members of DTOs throughout the Los Angelés area. The money is then sent to Mexico or South
America, where it is used to purchase cocaine, which is then sent back to Los Angeles-and is
distributed throughout Southern California and the United States. DEA Agents have also learned
that the Asian narcotics proceeds couriers are linked to Asian DTOs that use the currency to
purchase cocaine in the Los Angeles area, which is then sent back to Canada. The cocaine is then
sold in'Canada. The proeeeds from the cocaine in Canada are then sent back 1o the Los Angeles
area to purchase more cocaine and other narcolics. DEA Agents also believe that the same Asian
organization in Canada smuggles high grade marijuana to the United States and then send the

cash proceeds to Asian narcotics proceeds couriers in the Los Angeles area.

Significant Events / Seizurcs

23.  On September 20, 2013, at the request of DEA, a U.S. Postal interdiction team seized

! Additionn! information refated 1o Probable Caisse may or may nol be cuntained in the conlidential Hobbs Auachment of this
affidavit.
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a U.S. Express Mail package containing $40,650. An Orange County SherifP's Departient
narcotics detection K-9 indicated that the moncy had an odor of narcatics. The package was
-addressed to NGOC BICH JEWELRY, 9200 Bolsa Avenue, 113, Westminster, California 92683,
sent from RUBY JEWELRY, 5145 Buford Highway, Doraville, Georgia 30340. The Express
Mail label listed the telephone number for RUBY JEWELRY and the telephone number for
NGOC BICH JEWELRY, According to public databases, Sophana LIM is listed as the Chief

| Executive Office (CEO) of RUBY JEWELRY, DEA agents have found through toll analysis that

séveral phione numbers subscribed to LIM have also been in contact with Target Telephone #1.

24.On September 24, 2013, DEA agenis and Long Beach Police Officers seized $100,000
in drug proceeds from an individual who picked up the money from KS. JEWELRY STORE.
The delivery of the currency was coordinated using Target Telephone #1. A Long Beach Police
K-9 dog conductéed a search of the currency and detected a distinet narcotics odor, On November
7, 2013, DEA agents and Long Beach Police Officers seized $189,780 and a $100 counterfeit bilt
in drug proceeds from an individual who picked up the moncy from KS JEWELRY STORE.
The delivery of the curréncy was coordinated using Target Telephone #1. A Long Beach Police
K-9 dog conducted a search of the currency and detected a distinet narcoties odor.

Cell Site Analysi

25. I have received subseriber information and call detail récords from T-Mobile for

Target Telephone #1. 1 ordered cell site data, which shows that Target Telephone #1 is mostly

used near LAY and TAN’s business in Long Beach, California: The money is delivered in Long
Beach; however; the members of drug trafficking organizations picking up the money are located

throughout Southern California to include Riverside County.

Use of Target Telephone #
'oll Analysis for Target Telephone #1
26. | have reviewed the telephone call records for Target Telephone #1 for the time
period from November 20, 2013 through November 28,2013 (the “toll time period”). During the
toll time period, approximately 126 telephone calls were made to/from approximately 32 different

telephone numbers from Target Telephone #1.
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27, During the toll time petiod; l'ifhzget Telephone #1 had approximately 2 contacts with
“770-936-8509, with the most recent contact on November 23, 2013. Phone number 770-936-
8500 iy the business phone for RUBY JEWELRY. Subscriber information for the 770-936-8500
Tsts the subscriber as Ruby Jewelry, 5145 Buford Hwy NE STE D Atlanta, GA 30340. Target
Telephinie #1 was also in ¢ontact with 770-336-8510; subscribed to Sophana LIM, the CEO of
RUBY JEWELRY.

28, Based on my knowledge of this investigation , RUBY. JEWELRY was in contact with
Target Telephone #1 1o coordinate the delivery of narcotics proceeds. This is based on RUBY
JEWELRY’s history of sending narcotics proceeds in the U.S. mail.

29. On Septeniber 19, 2013, a Parcel Interdiction Task Force composed of U.S. Postal
Inspectors, Santa Ana Police Department (SAPD) and Orange County Sheriff's Department
(OCSD) séized a package sentfrom RUBY JEWELRY addressed'to NGOC BICH JEWELRY.
An OCSD K-9 dog detected an odor of narcotics on the packags: The package was found to

| contait $40,650 of U.S, currency in the mail to NGOG BICH JEWLERY. U8, Postal Inspectors

stated that they had seen similar packages sent from RUBY JEWELRY that they suspected to be

- narcotics proceeds; however did not intercept the packages due to internal regulations.

30. The package was addressed to NGOC. BICH JEWELRY, 9200 Bolsa Avenue, 113,

Westminster, California 92683, sent from Ruby Jeweiry, 5145 Buford Highway, Doraville,

Georgia 30340, The Bxpress Mail label listed the telephone number for the sender RUBY
JEWELRY (770-936-8500) and the telephone number for the recipient NGOC BICH JEWELRY

| (714-890-9527). According {o public databases, Sophana LIM is listed as the Chief Exccutive

Officer (CEQ) of RUBY JEWELRY. According to Tolls analysis, I have found that three
‘gdditional cell phone numbers (in addition to RUBY JEWELRY business phone) subscribed to
LIM, (the CEO of RUBY JEWELRY) that have been in frequent contact with Target Telephone
{1, fn my experience it is common for narcotics and narcotics proceeds couriers to have multiple
phone numbets.

31, On September 20, 2013, Postal Inspectors obtained a Federal search warrant and
ppene’d‘:lha Express Mail-package and found $40,650 of U.S. currency, The currency was

packaged inside a tin box that was placed within multiple layers of bubble mailers and boxes. No
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invoices were present, The package was then Seized by Postal Inspector Rofe and maintained in
the custody of the U.S. Postal Inspection Service. On September 25, 2013, U.S. Postal Inspector
Rofe tumed over the currency to DEA Los. Angeles agents. The lack of invoice and the multiple

' layers of packaging leéad me to believe that this is not a legitimate transaction. If the money was

for & legitimate transaction, it would contain an invoice. I also believe the multiple layers of

 packaging were intended to mask the odor of nar¢otics in hopes: that the narcotics K-9 dog would

not detect it.

32. T further belfeve that RUBY JEWELRY is involved sending narcoties procgeds
because of the history of NGOC BICH JEWLERY. Based on my knowledge of this
investigation, the money that RUBY JEWELRY sent to NGOC BICH JEWELRY is narcotics

proceeds-or is money that will be delivered to purchase additional narcotics, Based on my

| knowledge leared in this investigation and in conversations with. other law enforcement

personnel, NGOC BICH JEWELRY has been identified as transmitting narcotics proceeds for
DTOs, NGOC BICH JEWELRY was specifically identified as & narcotics proceeds courier
diring:a 2007 DEA Proffer with a member of a Vietnamese DTO, who was sentenced to prison
for trafficking narcotics from Canada to California and then using NGOC BICH JEWELRY (o
transmit the harcotics proceeds back to Canada, NGOC BICH JEWELRY also has been
identified as being involved in what appears to be a trade based money laundering scheme
according to suspicious financial records. NGOC BICH JEWELRY has been involved in these
illegal activities for decades. Below is a summary of what I have [eamed about the activities of .
NGOC BICH JEWELRY. I have also identified through past tolls analysis that business
telephone number for NGOC BICH JEWELRY is in regular contact with Target Telephone #1.
Based on tolls from RUBY JEWELRY (770-936-8500), RUBY JEWELRY was in contact with

- NGOC BICH JEWELRY' approximately 25 times during the toll period (August 24, 2013 to

September 22, 2013),

33.  On May2,2013, SA Bedford and [ called Vice President Assistant BSA Manager
A.B. at Bast West Bank in Los Angeles, California. A.B confirmed that NGOC BICH
JEWELRY had an account at East West Bank and that the business phone number listed was 714-

890-9527. A.B. also stated (hat he found records of 14 bank accounts linked to NGOC BICH
15
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JEWELRY. He explained that their financial investigation unit had found “a great deal of

 suspicious activity” linked to NGOC BICH JEWELRY and that the company was deemed too

risky for the East West Bank. Consequently, Bast West Bank made the decision to close all bank
agcounts finked to NGOC'BICH JEWELRY. [From my training and experience as well as

discussions with other more experienced agents, [ know that in this context, the risk the banks

fear is that illegal activity will lead to law enforcement seizure.] Several accounts linked to

NGOC BICH JEWELRY have been closed and the remaining accounts are in the process of
 being closed.

34, On May 28, 2013, [ called Chief Compliance Officer 1.C. at Manhattan Beach Trading

 Inc.in El Segundo, California. J.C. stated that Phi Thi NGUYEN is thie authorized signator of an

account for PRECIOUS JEWELS. J.C. stated (hat NGUYEN provided the phone number 714-
890-9527 as a business phone number for one of her accounts (this account is now closed). J.C.

- stated that Manhattan Bedch Trading Inc. has noticed suspicious financial activity from

NGUYEN’s accounts for $éveral years and that they have attempted to report the suspicious
activity. J.C. stated that NGUYEN wired unusually large amounts of currency into the trading
accounts. J.C. stated that these amounts were particularly suspicious for a small retail jewelry
business and they could not confirm the source of the money. J.C. stated that NGUYEN

continued to buy large amounts of gold at a time that others were not buying, as if she were trying

to mask some kind of other activity.

32, In addition, NGOC BICH JEWELRY was previously identified during a DEA San
Jose, Califomia investigation in 2007. During an interview with a narcotics courier named Khanh
Trieu LE, subsequent to his arrest for cultivation and sale of marij uana,” LE stated that on two
occasions, he was told by his narcotics source of supply to take narcotics proceeds to NGOC
BICH JEWELRY in the Los Angeles area and pay money that was owed. LE was told that his
source of supply would contact a Ngoc Bich Jewelry Store in Vancouver; Canada, and advise
them that a person would be delivering money to the Los Angeles based Ngoc Bich Jewelry, LE

stated that upon arrival to the bu_sihcss. he would hand the money to an unknown Vietnamese

z'-Thls interyiew was conducted as part of a pre-sentence proffer. Thig individunl was not a cooperating
source and | have no basis to make a credibility determination.
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femialé, who then counted it on an electronic money counter. Once counted, LE would receive a
receipt and leave the store, This money, minus some commission, would then be available to his
source of supply at the Ngoe Bich Jewelry Store in Vancouver, This was the method used to
transport drug proceeds o marijuana sold in Californiz back to the marijuana supplies in Canada.
a, Based on database searches, NGOC BICH JEWELRY was the only jewelry
store in'the Los Angeles area with “Ngoc Bich” in its name in the 2007 period.
b. On June 18,2013, I spoke to DEA Special Agent (SA) Matt Rammes, who was
‘the case agent for the 2007 DEA San Jose investigation. SA Rammnes verified that LE delivered
: narcotics proceeds to Ngoe Bich Jewelry Store at 9200 Bolsa Avenue, Westminster, California to

Vo S I - SR Y I S 75 S 6

10 | beseat to LE’s marijuana suppliers in Canada. SA Rammies stated that the LE was receiving high

11 | grademarijuana from Vancouver, Canada and selling the majority of it in Northern California and
12 | selting lesser quantities in Southern California. SA Rammes stated LE sold the marijuana for

13 approximately $5000-$6000 per pound. According to the 2007 proffer; LE would arrange for the
14 matijiiana proceeds to be delivered to his suppliers in Canada through Ngoe Bich Jewelry in

15 Westminster, California. LE would do this by talking to somebody in Canada who would arvange
16 for the narcotics proceeds to be brought to Ngoc Bich Jewelry, located in the Asian Garden Mall

at 9200 Bolsa Avenye, Westminster, California. There-is another identically named jewelry store

(Ngoe Bich Jewelry) in' Vancouver, Canada. Ngoc Bich Jewelty in Westminster, California

iz would send the money to Ngoc Bich Jewelry in Canada, where the narcotics proceeds would be

20 picked up by the marijuana source of supply in Canada. SA Rammes further stated that in 2006,
9 a California Bureau of Narcotics (BNE) team condueted surveillance of LE on behalf of DEA San
29 Jose. During the surveillance, BNE agents observed LE enter Ngoc Bich Jewelry in the Asian

_ Garden Mall, 9200 Bolsa Avenue, Westminster, California, SA Rammes stated that DEA San

- Jose later learned during a proffer with LE that the purpose of his visit to Ngoc Bich Jewelry

- Store was to send the narcotics proceeds to Canada, where the moncy would be picked up by his
- narcotics suppliers,

w0 35. Furthermore, in 2011, United States Postal Inspectors working in conjunction with the
z: Los Angeles Police Department (LAPD) conducled an operation to intercept narcotics related

currency sent through the U.S. mail. LAPD Detective George Beshay intercepted a box

17
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addressed to PRECIOUS JEWELS BY NGOC BICH INC, 9200 Bolsa Avenue #131,
Westminster, California, which he suspected contained U.S. currency. Investigators and officers

ook the box to NGOC BICH JEWELRY and approached NGUYEN, In an interview during

which NGUYEN's daughtet acted as a translator, NGUYEN provided consent for law

: -enforcement to-open the box, Inside the box: was bulk currency wrapped in foil. NGUYEN
statedtheboxcammmd approximately $50,000, which she claimed was proceeds fromjewelry

'-Is_a_i_l_ea; Law énforcement did not see an-invoice or receipt in the box. During the following week,

Detective Beshay identified approximately three more boxes addresied to NGOC BICH
JEWELRY with the same general appearance, Due to-internial regulations, these additional boxes
were not intercepted. However, USPS issued a warning to PRECIOUS JEWELS BY NGOC

- BICH JEWELRY for sending bulk currency in the mail.

36. According to financial records, during the fourth quarter of 2012, NGOC BICH
JEWELRY issued numerous ¢hecks and conducted multiple wire transfers ranging from
approximately $3,000 to $300,000, totaling in excess of $40 million dollars. In addition, account
records reflect large cash withdrawals from the account.

37. A DEA senior financial analyst analyzed three bank accounts of NGOC BICH
JEWELRY, for which NGUYEN is an authorized signer. These accounts reflect suspicious
financial activity. The first bank account showed approximately $681,353,625.58 of deposits and
$681,348,932.22 of withdrawals from January 2011 to June 2012. The second bank account
showed approximately $283,135,259.55 of deposits and $283,135,259.35 of withdrawals from
April 2012 to April 2013. The thitd bank account showed approximately $173,563,448.73 of
de_posils and $174,013,041.11 of withdrawals from January 2010 to April 2013. These three
accounts show a similar pattern of withdrawals being closely equivalent to deposits, According
to the sénior financial analyst, such a pattern is extremely suspicious and abnormal financial
aclivity because the cash flow streams of legitimate business are not usually able to so precisely
match in deposits and withdrawals. In addition, based on the pattem of transfers and the nature of
the recipients, the senior financial analyst believes that the business could be engaged in

unlicensed money transmitting and/or is part of a trade based money laundering scheme in which

18
Affidavit - Wirciap #13-310

L s e




(S T S T (G T T 6] [ S R e e e e T o)
S REPLRBBEREESESE ST ESR S

K D 0 =1 A% W D W R)

funds received for purchases come from others who did not make the purchases but needed to
launder funds.
VL

NECESSITY®

| 38. Interception of wire communications over the Target Telephone #1 is
necessary for the governrent (o fully achicve the objectives of this investigation, which include:
2. identifying and developing sufficient evidence to identify, locate, indict,and prosecute
beyond a reasonable doubt, the Target Subjects;

b. identifying and developing sufficient evidence to identify, locate, indict, and
prosecute beyond a reasonable doubt, co-conspirators who are working with the
Target Subjects (including suppliers, transporters, guards, brokers, customers,
and money launderers) and therefore, in as large a ' wayas possible, disrupt the
drug trafficking and narcotics money distributor activities of Target Subjects;

¢. discovering the full scope of the conspiracy, including the manner and means of
the procurement, receipt, transportation, storage, and eventual distribution of
controlled substances. This includes discovering the roles of the Target Subjects
and others as well as the methods of operation used by the Target Subjeets and
other co-conspirators;

d. discovering specific occasions on which the Target Subjects and co-conspirators
are conducting drug transactions so that the transactions can be observed and
seizures can potentially be made;

e. locating any storage location or locations for controlled substances that the Target
Subjects, or their unknown associates, currently use so that seizures of controlled
substances can be made;

f. gathering information about where the targets, brokers, and customers keep the
cash they use to purchase the controlled substances and proceeds earned from the

sale of the controlled substances;

2 Additiena] information related 10 Necessity may or may nol be coatained in the conlidential |[obbs attachment of this AlTidavit.

9
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g. locating the assets of the targets and their co-conspirators and developing a case
that will allow for the forfeiture of the assets they have amassed through the illegal
sale of controlled substances;

h. abtaining different types of evidence that will assist the govemnment in proving
beyond & reasonable doubt (i.c.. that-will support a conviction) the alleged
violations set foith hercin against the Target Subjects, and any lateridentified
targets, including: controlled substances; documents; recordings of illegal activity
that furthers the conspiracy; and surveillance observations (collectively, “the goals
of the investigation™).

39. Falso believe that interception of wire communications over the Target Telephone #1

“is necessary because, as expldined below, normai investigative techniques have been tried arid

have faited to fully achieve the objectives of this investigation, or appear reasonably likely to fail
if attempted, or are too-dangerous to employ. Based on my knowledge of this investigation, this
is true because the goals of this investigation include: fully identifying the Target Subjects
and/orany locations they use in ihe United States in furtherance of the Target Offenses;
identifying other narcotics money distributors; identifying othier narcotics organizations, such as.
those in Asia, Canada, Mexico and others are working with those harcotics organization;
determining the manner in which this organization launders money and smuggles controiled
substances into the United States and overseas; identifying other unknown co-conspirators who
are assisting the Target Subjects and others in their efforts to import and distribute controlled
substances; obtaining information about other narcotics money distributors; identifyitig controlied
substance stash locations used by this organization and others; identifying any assets generated by

the sale of narcotics and narcotics money distributor activities by Target Subjects and others;

‘and dismantling the drug trafficking and narcotics proceeds remiltance organization(s).

Moreover, because the goals of this investigation go far beyond the activities of the Target

Subjects, the requested wiretaps are necessary to achieve the broad goals of this investigation.
40, To date, agents have utilized multiple traditional investigative techniques in this

investigation. These techniques include, but are not limited to: physical surveillance,

confidential informants, attempted interviews, vehicle trackers, pole cameras, financial
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investigations and consensual recordings. These techniques have assisted investigators in

- developing a preliminary blueprint of the Target Subjects activities and the seizure of $140,650

durmg the past month. Howéver, as described in detail herein, these techniques have failed in
satisfying the goals of the investigation, as, for example, law enforcement has not uncovered the
identities of the otganizers, the sources of the cocaine, locations of stash houses, or the methods
of laundering the proceeds.

41, The following is a list of the investigative techniques that have been used or that [
have considered using to date in this investigation, and an explanation of why these techniques
{without a wiretap on the Tirget Telephione #1) are not reasonably likely to succeed in allowing
the government to fully achieve the goals of this investigation.

Confidential Sources

42. As discussed in furiher detail below, CI-1 is a confidential source working for DEA
Tucson. Although CI-1 has been helpful in this investigation, CI-1’s use is limited based on
his/her role as a low-level money courier. Cl-1"s information has primarily been limited to
his/her knowledge about the activities of HYLA. He/she does not know any of the other Target
Subjects. CI-1 also has no knowledge about the inner workings of the Asian Narcotics Courier
Organization or-direct access to the funding of narcotics within this organization as he/she has
historically picked up money from HYLA.

43, As discussed in further detail below; CI-2 was a confidential source working for DEA
Chicago. Although-CI-2 has been helpful in this investigation, Cl-2’s use is limited based on
his/her role as a low-level money courier. CI-2’s information has primarily been limited to
his/her knowledge about the activities of HYLLA, He/she does not know any of the other Target
Subjects. CI-2 also has no knowledge about the inner workings of the Asian Narcotics Courier
Organization or direct access 10 the funding of narcotics within this organization.

44, Aﬁhough CI-1 and CI1-2 have been successfully utilized in this investigation, [ still
know of no confidential informant that is in a position to provide information or assistance that
will result in law enforcement satisfying the goals of this investigation. Cl-1 and CI-2 are low

level couriers who have been unable to provide information about the managers or organizers of
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1 “the Los Angeles based DTO and are unable to do more than provide law enforcement with

information about their direct contacts,

45,  Tf the opportunity presents itsclf, we will continue ta develop other confidential
informants. Our ability to do so is limited, since we need (o find someone who has access (o the
organization and is willing 10-cooperate, which is typically difficult, since members of drug
trafficking organizations have been trained fo fear violent reprisal if they cooperate with the
authorities.

Undercover Agents

46, DEA has been unable o infiltrate the organization using an undercovet agent (UC).

The orgimlzallon inyolving the Target Subjects is very particular about whom they do busineys
with and o it is highly unlikely that an'undercover officer/agent would be able to initiaté a drug
dealing relationship with anyone within the organization on His‘her own.

47, Due'to the low level of the confidential sources involved in the investigation, and the low
likelihood that-any higher level sources could be developed, it is unlikely that any undercover
officer/agent would be able to achieve any further penetration of the organization. Even if a face
to face meeting with au undercover could be condueted, the undercover would not be qbie. to
determine the extent of the entire enterprise and would not be able to fully identify a source of
supply or ttic leadership of the Canadian and Mexican narcotics purchasers and the Agian

narcotics money distributor network. 1t is unlikely that any undercover would be able to obtain

| any more information than has already been provided by CI-1 or that law enforcement has been

able to dévelop. Any undercover agent would be “new” to the organization, and would not be
permitted fo learn significant information about other members of the organization,

48. Specifically in this case, it appears thal the Target Subjects are close friends or family
members that share personal and cuitural ties. The investigation has suggested that co-
conspirators live together or nearby and share a bond of trust based on lifetime relationships. For
example, this investigation has showed that YU, TING, and LIN are related and share a residence.
It also shows that YU, TING, LIN are linked to JERSON TRADE, making it likely a family run
‘business. The same is true with the relationship between LAY and TAN, who share a residence

~and also work togetlier, NGUYEN and [TOW are a mother and daughter team. It would be nearly
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impossible for an undetcover officer/agent to access the Asimn narcotics mouney distributor
networks. Therefore, it is highly unlikely the undercover officer/agent would be able to gain the
type of information sought to achieve the goals of this investigation,
Consengual Récordings
46. To date consensual recordings have been a helpful investigative tool, and have been
exploited by law enforcemeént. On February 15, 2013 A LA IMPACT UC was in contact with YU

| to coordinate a money pickup in Monterey Park, Califoraia, The UC contacted YU, This contact

resulted in two recorded conversations between the UC and YU. It should be noted, that although
this recording is concrete evidence against YU, this is a small window into this money
distribution organization, YU was extremely vague in her communications with 1lie'UC'during
the.recorded telephone call.

47, Based on my knowledge of this investigation, only through the interception of Target
Telephone #1 will agents be able (o begin to identify the individuals involved in the Asian
narcotics money distributor network and the Canadian narcotics sources of supply network. Only
through wiretaps will agents be able (o hold these high-ranking members accountable for their
actions. | can say with-almost absolule certainty that the Target Subjects are only a:small part in
what-appears to be an international conspiracy. As this investigation progresses, DEA has

continued to identify new Asian money couriers, Additional consensual recordings may be made

[ as the investigation progresses. However, even if I discover an opportunity o make additional

consensual recordings with the Target Subjects, these recordings will face limitations. As
described above in the sections regarding CSs and UCs, those able o conduct consensual
recordings will likely only be given access 1o limited pieces of information regarding the target
organization. The information obtained will likely pertain only to discrete drug and/or money
delivery transactions between the CS and a member of the Target Organization and not satisfy the
goals of the investigation.
Physical Surveillance

48, Physical surveillance is an investigative tool oflen used to verify suspected

associations between alleged conspirators, but often leads to speculation regarding the

significance of the observations, This is due in part to the very nature of physical surve¢illance, as

23
Affidavit - Wiretap #13-310




13 cannot extend into-a drug dealer’s home; business, or other discreet locations whete drug

rany ";_,__{,_iﬁm‘zgpmmonly:tnkg place. Physical surveillance, if not used in.conjunction: with other

techniquies; including wire surveillance, is of limited value,

{49. Below, I will list:some of the surveillance observations that hiave been made in relation

| o the investigation into the Target Subjects. These are just examples 6f observations made by
1aw enforcement during the course of this investigation and do not encompass all of the

perations conducted by law enforcement. These surveillances have been conducted on
iidualoingide e United Sats.
50, On December 5, 2012; agents from DEA Los Angeles and DEA Tucson conducted

surveillarice of CI-1 and two unknown truck drivers. During the surveillance, CI-1 delivered
approximately 40 kilograms of simulated narcotics to the two truck drivers. HYLA had provided
CI-1 with the money that was infended to purchase the narcotics, Following the transaction, a
traffic stop of the truck drivers was conducied by the California Highway Patrol (CHP), at the
request of the DEA, and the two truck drivers were arrested. The two truck drivers cooperated
with DEA Tucson and revcaled that they were supposed to transport narcotics to Canada sing
their semi-truck.

51, On February 1, 2013, DEA Agents conducted surveillance of a money drop at the
HONG KONG SUPER MARKET, ClI-1 informed DEA Agents that HYLA would be picking up
money, During surveillance; agents observed HYLA pickup currency froman Asian female.
Agents theri observed Asian-female enter the CHALLENGER. Agents followed CHALLENGER
to 513 W. Ralph Street, San Gabriel, California, where the Asian female exited the vehicle and
entered the residence.

52. On February 15, 2013, DEA Agents conducted surveillance at JERSON TRADE, the
ROSELYN LOCATION, and 513 W. Ralph Street, San Gabriel, California. During surveillance,
agents evaluated the possibility of a (rash search at YU’s residence and business. Agenis
observed the ODYSSEY parked in the driveway of the residence.

53. On February 15,2013, LA IMPACT and DEA conducted surveillance at the HONG
KONG SUPER MARKET. The surveillance was part of an operation in which a LA IMPACT
UC picked up approximately $300,000 of U.S. currency from YU, This surveillance was useful,

24
AfMidayit - Wirctop #13-310




BN £ K MR DN DN A s e b e e e Ges e ees g
00 N A W R W N = OO0 00y b s B e O

O e o~ & ot u L Y—

e

sinice the UC was able to positively identify YU.

54, On February 27, 2013, DEA Agents conducted surveillasice at the ROSELYN
LOCATION and 513 W. Ralph Stréet, San Gabriel; Califortia, During surveillance; agents
installed'a GPS tracking device on the CHALLENGER, which was parked in the driveway of 123
Rosclyn Lane, Agents were not able to install a GPS tracking dévice on the ODYSSEY because
the vehicle was not located during the installation. [ will consider installing a GPS tracking device
on'the ODYSSEY in the future if feasible.,

55: On March 13, 2013, DEA Agents conducted surveillance at the ROSELYN
LOCATION, JERSON TRADE, and the HONG KONG SUPER MARKET. Daring survéillance,

‘agents observed the CHALLENGER parked in the driveway of the ROSELYN LOCATION and
saw a maroon minivan, which appeared to be YU's ODYSSEY parked behind the fence at the

same location.

56, On March 15, 2013, surveillance was conducted at HYLA’S residence, 404 San
Vicente Boulevard, Santa Monica, California. During surveillance, [ observed an orange
Mitsubishi parked in the parking garage below the residence, Upon further investigation, |
discovered that the vehicle was a rental vehicle rented by HYLA HYLA had been renting the
vehicle since January 16, 2013 and was scheduled 10 return the vehicle on March 19, 2013, It
appears that this vehicle is the same vehicle DEA Agents observed HYLA driving on February 1,
2013, when he picked up money from an Asian female at the Hong Kong Supermarkat in
Monterey Park, California.

§7. On April 3, 2013, DEA Agents conducted surveillance at 14738 Rick Lane, ‘Corona,
California. During surveillance agents observed the CHALLENGER parked in the driveway of
the residence. The front door of the residence was open and I observed two males inside the entry
way of the residence. According to GPS tracker data, the CHALLENGER has been located at this
residence or multiple occasions.

58. Cn April 5,2013, DEA Agents conducted surveillance at the ROSELYN LOCATION
and JERSON TRADE. During suryeéillance agents observed the ODYSSEY parked in the
driveway of the ROSELYN LOCATION and the CHALLENGER parked behind the fence at the
ROSELYN LOCATION. | observed YU move the ODYSSEY to the rear of JERSON TRADE
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and inside the back of the vehicle for approximately 20 minutes: T also observed TING and LIN
Belping YU at JERSON TRADE,

59. On April 9, 2013, GPS wacker data indicated that the CHALLENGER drove from
Monterey Park to Morongo Casino in Cabazon, California. The CHALLENGER arrived at
approximately 12:50 A.M. and departed at approximately 1:50 A.M. The CHALLENGER
stopped at Moronge Casine for approximately one hour before driving to Pomona, California and
then returning to the ROSELYN LOCATION. The fact that the CHALLENGER only stayed at
the casino for approximately one hour seems suspicious, since the drive to the Morongo Casino is
approximately an hour and a half drive in each direction.

60. On April 10, 2013, GPS tracker data indicated that the CHALLENGER drove from
Monterey Park to Morongo Casino in Cabazon, California, The CHALLENGER arrived at
approximately 12:00 A.M. and départed at approximately 1:00 A.M. I contacted Riverside
County Sheriff’s Departtient and requested that a patrol unit locate the CHALLENGER and
conduct a traffic stop. A Riverside County Sheriff's Deputy located the CHALLENGER and
conducted a traffic stop after it left the casino. The deputy identified LIN as the driver and TING
as the passenger of the vehicle. The deputy received consent to search the CHALLENGER, but
did not find any contraban, LIN stated that his residence is 513 Ralph Street and TING stated
her residence is 127 8. Gurﬁcld Ave, Monterey Park, California, This'is the address of JERSON
TRADE. TING stated that she works at Fu Yi Store (aka JERSON TRADE). TING stated that
sheis LINs sister.

61. On April 10, 2013, DEA Agents conducted surveillance at HYLA’s residence, 404
San Vicente Boulevard, Santa Monica, California. During surveillance agents observed HYLA's
rental car, a black 2013 Chrysler 200 Touring, California license plate 6YMW133 parked in
HYLA's parking space in the parking gamge.

62. On April 22, 2013, DEA Agents conducted surveillance at KS JEWELRY STORE,
836 E. Anaheim Street, Long Beach, California. During surveillance agents observed that the
business was closed and the gazc. to the business was locked. I observed several surveillance
cameras altached to the exterior of the business. During this surveillance, agents evaluated the

possibility of a trash pull.
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63. On April 26, 2013, DEA Agents conducted surveillance at HYLA’s residence, 404

San Vicente Boulevard, Santa Monien, California. During surveillance agents observed HYLA’s

rental-car; a red 2013 Nissati Altima, Califomia license plate 6ZTJ356 parked in HYLA’s parking
space in the parking garage.

64, On May 23, 2013, | conducted surveilldnce at the JERSON TRADE. During
surveillance Tobserved the CHALLENGER parked behind JERSON TRADE. 1 observed that

- JERSON TRADE was open and observed several unidentified Asian individuals enter and exit

JERSON TRADE, 1 observed on unidentified Asian male enter JERSON TRADE with a
cardboard box and later exit JERSON TRADE with.a cardboard box. | also observed the same
Asian male exit JERSON TRADE with a white plastic bag, The Asian male placed thé plastic bag

| and cardboard box in (e rear of his yehicle and departed JERSON TRADE.

65. On May 30, 2013, DEA Agents conducted surveillance of LAY and TAN at their
residenice in Seal Beacl, Califotnia and then followed them to KS JEWELRY STORE. DEA
Agents continued surveillance at KS JEWELRY STORE. During surveillance, agents observed
several vehicles arrive and-depart, but were unable to observe the activities that occurred inside
the business.

66. On August 1, 2013, DEA Agents conducted surveillance at JERSON TRADE, 127 N,
Garfield Avenue, Monterey Park, California. During surveillance | observed a delivery truck park
to the year of JERSON TRADE. After the delivery truck departed, several people began to enter
and exit JERSON TRADLE. | observed YU cxit the rear of JERSON TRADE and place a black
plastic bag inside the ODYESSEY. I requested for Monterey Park Police Department (MPPD) to
conduct a tralfTic stop of YU, MPPD Officer Tony Ulrich conducted a traffic stop of the
ODYSSEY after he observed it speeding in a school zone. YU consented to a search of the
ODYSSEY and no contraband was found. YU had a large amount of cash in her purse; she stated
it was money collected from tenants for rent. 1 conducted an interview of YU with MPPD
Detective Bob Hung, who acted as a Mandarin Translator. YU was evasive to questions asked
and changed her stalement several times. YU claimed to have no knowledge of any money
deliveries, TING claimed that she and LIN had been making deliveries for YU, but did not have
knowledge of what the packages contained.
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67, Oun October 8,2013, DEA Agents conducted surveillance at KS JEWELRY STORE,
836 E. Anaheim Sireet, Long Beach, California. During surveillance DEA Agents observed a few
vehicles arrive at KS JEWLERY STORE and severl Asian individuals would enter the

‘business for a shott period of time and then depart, Agents-observed two Asian females itva black

Acura arrive empty handed carrying purses: The Asian females exited KS JEWELRY STORE
and returned to their car. I then obsetved one of the Asian females walk to the rear of the business
and retrieye a bag, which she placed insideé the back seat of the Acura. As DEA Agents were

following the Acura, the vehicle engaged in counter-surveillance driving techniques; as it cirgled

| the block, DEA Agents continued to follow the Acura and requested Long Beach Police
fﬁ%g&gﬁmcﬁt 1o conducta traffic stop. A subsequent traffic stop of the Acura revealed rio
‘conttaband in the vehiclo; The bag only contained clothes and papers.

68. On October 24, 2013, DEA Agents conducted surveillance at 3919 Rock Landing
Way, Seal Beach, California (LAY and TAN’s residence). DEA agents observed u Grey Toyota
Camry, California License plate 6GKUT742 (the CAMRY) parked on the left side of the driveway

-and a black Toyota Camry parked on the street in front of the residence. DEA agents observed the

lights in the residence turned off. Ithen placed a GPS Tracking Device on the CAMRY.
69. On November 5, 2013, Long Beach Police Department {LBPD) detectives conducted
surveillance at KS JEWELRY STORE on behalf of DEA. During surveillance LBPD followed

TAN, driving the Camry. LBPD determined that TAN appeared to be running typical errands and

then terminated surveillance.

70. On'November 7, 2013, DEA agents and LBPD detectives established surveillance on
TAN using a GPS Tracker. DEA agents and LBPD followed TAN to at KS JEWELRY STORE
and observed him enter. [ also observed LAY at KS JEWELRY STORE. During surveillance,
DEA agents observed RIVAS arrive empty handed and depart with a white cardboard box.
LBPD then conducted a traffic stop of RIVAS and seized the box, which contained $189,780 of
U.S. currency and a $100 counterfeit bill.

71, On November 15, 2013, DEA agents and Simi Valley Police Department (SVPD)
detectives conducted surveillance at KS JEWELRY STORE. During surveillance, DEA agents

and SVPD detectives observed a white male and Asian male enter the front door. After the two
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males departed, the white male dropped the Asian male off on the streel. The white male, then
drove to a bank and entered with a deposit bag.

72. On Noveriber 19, 2013, DEA agents and LBPD detectives conducted surveillance at
KSJEWELRY STORE, Dusing surveillance, agents observed both LAY and TAN at the
business, DEA agents followed TAN to another jewelry store twite, where he only entered: for
approximateély two minutes, before retuming to KS JEWELRY STORE.

73, On November 26, 2013, DEA agents and LBPD detectives conducted surveillance at
KSJEWELRY STORE. During surveillance, agents observed TAN at the business, DEA
agents observed multiple vehicles arrive and depart KS JEWELRY STORE.

74: 'E’hysicai .Sﬁ'rvefllai;ct;, even in conjunction with other conventional methods of

 investigation, rarely provides enough information to link specific meetings with specific narcotics

transactions. For several reasons, [ do not believe that even round-the-clock surveillance will
achieve the goals of this investigation without the assistance of wire interception. It is unl ikely
that the Target Subjects will commit criminal activily in open view of the surveillance agents:
Drug traffickers usually conduct drug deliveries in encloséd locations, ot in a discrete manner,
thus thwarting the effectiveness of surveillance. Indeed, here, the only activity that is conducted
in the open has been carrying a suitcase or a backpack in and out of structures; law enforcement

does not-know the exact details regarding the ultimate destination of the proceeds after their

 initial delivery.

75. Additionally, during the hours of darkness, physical surveillance is difficult to
conduct, For example, we experienced this situation during surveillance on February 1, 2013.
During this survcillance, we were unable to identify the money courier due to darkness, Due to
reduced visibility, surveillance vehicles must sometimes be positioned closer to the Target

Subjects in order to observe their actions adequately. Yet, surveillance vehicles are also more

‘prone to stand out while following the Target Subjects’ vehicles in arcas surrounding their

residences and stash locations. During hours of darkness, traffic congestion is greatly reduced,
making the surveillance vehicles more vulnerable to detection.

76. More importantly, through my training and experience | know that there is virtually no
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chance that physical surveillance will result in evidence that will satisfy the goals of the
imyestigation. This is 50 because surveillance only allows us to observe physical actions and not
the substance or meaning of the actions. During surveillance, law enforcement is typically only
able to see that something is changing hands. For example, during this investigation, surveillance
of thie controlled opersttions would only, at most, be able 1o observe the éxchange of a paper bag,
Thus, surveillance is unable to see whether it is drugs or money or something else changing.

bands.- Thus, we are unable to.develop prosecutable cases against:people who meet and simply:

| bavescime phiysical contact, While this physical contact may be vﬂll_aﬁié as corroborative
evidenge of money or narcotics transaction which has been planned and disclosed ona wire call

or text message, the ph}f_.si'cal activity will undoubtedly be left open to various innocent
interpretations when viewed without the wire interceptions to flush-out the reason for the physical

contact. ‘For instance, people who are caught receiving or possessing large amounts of currency

“often elainy that they proceeds came from a legilimate business transaction or that the money is

“their money. They often claim that they were simply paid to pick up a package and that they did

not know the contents of the package. A wiretap call and/or a text message will allow the

government to prove that the-person knew what he/she was receiving because he/she discussed it

' on the phone with aturget of'the investigation, Content from a wiretap call or text message is

+also necessary to tie monetary proceeds to unlawful activity, such as diug trafficking. Especially

in this case, given that most of the observed transactions have involved deliveries of money,
which could theoretically have many uscs, it will be particularly important to obtain evidence of
the intent and/or knowledge of the individuals about the sources, origins, and destinations of the
money.

77. Also, as mentioned previously, it is inconceivable that physical surveillance would be able
{0 view every supplier and customer who is associated with the DTO. This is so because many
people who are involved in the DTO will not make open and visible physical contact with each
other. Many people associated with the DTO organization will participate by making telephone
calls rather than taking the increased risk of physically associating themselves with the illegal
activities of the organization.

78. Uncovering the entirety of the target organization is one of the goals of this investigation.
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Limiting to the investigation people who physically conduct illegal activities in the open where
s’t__lr?ef-llance, may see them would mean that many of the higher ranking members of the
organization would escape’detection. From my training and experience; T know that it is often the
case that higher ranking mémbers of DTOs insulate themselves from potential law enforcement
detention by sending Jower level couriers to conduct the physical work. Surveillance will only
supply:a liniited outlirie of the events that oceur. It is the wire interceptions that will reveal the
true ngture of the events,

79. Further, wire interceptions allow DEA to direct its resources to the time and locations
where surveillance will likely produce the most significant evidence and reduce the likelihood

that surveillance will be delected and compromised. Wire interceptions allow DEA to understand

- when'events of significance are going 1o take place and therefore direct its surveillance teams to

those oceasions in which it is likely that we will observe something of significant evidentiary
value. For inls!anccj‘,-.._lh_:j interception wilt allow DEA to determine when Target Shbjgcts:wii! be
receiving deliveries of significant amounts of drugs or drug proceeds. This type of infonnatibn'
will allow DEA to pinpoint - when surveillance will produce the most substantial evidence and

target those occasions, rather than running the risk of detection by simply sending out

surveillance teams on random occasions, 1 do not want to jeopardize this investigation by

watching the Target Subjects go to the grocery store; go to the baik, or do any of the other

multitude possible daily tasks that would result in our conducting surveillance needlessly. ‘Doing

so will only increase the risk of being discovered by the Target Subjects. If we continue to

conduet suryeillance and traffic stops of suspect vehicles without the assistance of a wiretap, we
will alert the Target Subjects and they will change their patters, making 1t even more difficult to
detect,
GPS Trackers

80. On February 21, 2013, Judge Gail Ruderman Feur, of the Superior Court of California,
Central Judicial District signed a Search Warrant authorizing the installation of a GPS tracking
device on the CHALLENGER and the ODYSSEY. On February 27, 2013, agents installed a
GPS tracking device on the CHALLENGER, which was parked in the driveway of the

ROSELYN LOCATION. Agents were unable to locate the ODYSSEY, therefore a GPS tracking
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device was not installed on the ODYESSY.

81, On April 5, 2013, Judge Maral Injejikian, of the Superior Court of California; Central
Judicial District signed a Search Warrant authorizing the installation of'a GPS tracking device on
the CHALLENGER, ODYSSEY and on HYLA’s rental vehicle,

a. OnApril 5,2013, agents installed a new GPS tracking device on the
CHALLENGER, which was parked in parking lot of Walmart at 1827 Walnut Grove Avenue,
Rosemead, California.

b. HYLA is known to only drive rental vehicles and switches vehicles on a regular
basis. Agents have only recently been able to identify HYLA's rental pattern to identify his

'vehicle. On March 15, 2013, Tobserved an orange Mitsubishi rerital vehicle parked at HYLA's
residence. 1 discovered that HYLA was scheduled to return the rental vehicle on March 19,2013.

On March 20", T submitted an administrative Subpoena to Hertz Rental Car requesting vehicle
rental records for HYLA, Hertz corporate security stated that HYLA rented a 2013 Chrysler
sedan, California license:_piﬁté. 6YMW133 on March 19, 2013 and was scheduled to retum the:
vehicle on May 18, 20:1-3-.. On-April 10, 2013, agents located FIYLA s Chrysler rental vehicle
parked in the parking garage of his residence. Agents entered the parking garage and placed 2

- 'GPS tracking device on HYLA”s Chrysler rental vehicle. On April 16,2013, the GPS tracking

-device slopped working and agents were no longer able to monitor HYLA’s vehicle. According to

Hertz records, HYLA retured the Chryslet to on April 22, 2013,
82. | have also instalied a tracking device on another rental vehicle of HYLA's,
a. On April 26, 2013, | identified a red 2013 Nissan Altima parked in
HYLA’s parking space in the parking garage of his residence. | went to Hettz Rental Vehicles
and verified that HYLA has been renting the Nissan since March 18, 2013 and is scheduled to
return the Nissan on May 18, 2013.
b, On April 26, 2013, Judge Craig E Veals, of the Superior Court of
California, Central Judicial Distriet signed a Search Warrant authorizing the installation of a GPS
tracking device on HYLA's Nissan Altima rental vehicle. On the same day, 1 installed a GPS
tracking device to HYLAs Nissan Rental Vehicle,
83, On October 24, 2013, Judge Lia Martin, of the Superior Court of California, Central
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- Judicial District signed a Search Warrant authorizing the installation of a GPS tacldng- device on
' the CAMRY driven by TAN. October 24, 2013, DEA agents installed a GPS tracking device on’

the CAMRY, which was patked on the left side of the driveway of LAY and TAN's residence at
3919 Rock Landing Way, Seal Beach, California. On November 22, 2013, GPS data indicated
that TAN's Camry travelled to NGOC BICH JEWELRY and then returned to KHMER:

'SARMEY JEWELRY STORE: I observed TAN enter the Camry using a pole camera, before he

went fo NGOC BICH JEWELRY STORE.

84, Agents were nat-able to request a GPS data ping search warrant for Target Telephone #1.
This is because Target Telephone #1 is a T-Mabile phone. T-Mobile does not allow effective
GPS Ping monitoring for agents to utitize this feature in a cost effective manner. If this

investigation leads to the identification of pertitent U.S based phone numbers that are capable of

“GPS monitoring, agents will attempt to acquire GPS orders/warrants in order to track these

phones,

85. The GPS tracking deévice in use has been useful in identifying locations frequented by the
Targel Subjects; however, GPS tracking devices are limited in the information they provide, as
they allow investigators to see only where a patticular vehicle or device is traveling, but provide
no information about who is using the vehicle or device, or what is happening or likely to’happen
at a particular joeation. At most, GPS tracking devices ean provide law enforcement with
locations of interest Tor further investigation, but do not provide the insight into the activities or
higher-level actors of an organization sought by the investigation.

Search Warrants

86. Some of the long term goals of this investigation are to execute search warrants at all
known drug allifiated locations, there needs 1o be a great deal of careful planning prior to the
service of these types of search warrants. For example, drug traffickers usually conduct their
business without muintaining a daily journal of all of their suppliers and customers and stash
houses and methods of operation. While drug traffickers do often keep drug ledgers at their
homes, businesscs, or other locations where they store things, the ledgers are typically cryptic and
difficult 1o understand without other evidence (such as codes for drugs and individuals) obtained

from a wire interception, On their own, ledgers will not supply the evidence needed to satisfy the
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goals of the investigation, Drug traffickers also usually do not write down on ledgers the full

names of their supplices or customers with whom they conduct their drug trafficking activities.

| Even il other evideénce could be found through the execution of a search warrant, it would not be

hie type of evidence theit-would likely satisfy the goals of the investigation. Also, a search
warrant revedls the existeniee and nature of the investigation, limiting prospective investigation.
87. Conducting search-warrants on stash houses (which have not yet been identified in this

case) may lead 1o seizures of narcotics and narcotics proceeds; but they are unlikely to result in

the mrrest of critical members of the organization. Stash houses are often are handled by lower
ranking members of the m’g_ﬁlii'zat'ion as part of an effort that is used to insulate the higher ranking
members of the argan!k&liﬁn. 'l‘ﬁereﬁjre, frequently, little information is kept at the stash house
that would allow law enforcement to connect the evidence found at the stash house back to the
higher ranking members ofthe organization,

88, More importanily, the goal of this investigation is not lo chargo a few actors with
narcotics and narcotics proceeds remitiance counts, but to dismantle the entire Target
Organization. While the excculion of search warrants may provide evidence of drug trafficking,

if drugs and money are found, they would reveal all of the sources of supply for the organization,

allof the customers and workers in the organization, the roles of the workers-in the organization,

or many other details siecessary to achieve the goals of this investigation.

89. Additionally, even if items such as large amounts of currency, documents Jisting addresses

‘and telephone numbers, and other papers are seized during the execution of search warrants, they

‘generally have fur less probative value by themselves than when they are introduced in

conjunction witli conversations between the conspirators which give full meaning to the
documents. The scizure of such items without the aid of intercepted conversations among the
Target Subjects will not be reasonably likely to enable the government to prove beyond a
reasonable doubt the actual commission of specific narcotics trafficking acts by the Target
Subjeets, including drug conspiracy charges.

90, Search warrants conducted in conjunction with intercepted conversations in the future will
facilitate timely, productive searches resulting in the seizure of evidence, narcotics; and/or

parcotics proceeds. Having substance and context from intercepted conversations will also
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L § reduce the cisk that law enforcement compromise the investigation by revealing it during fruitless §
2 | secarches. However, as | i;_ic:ntit’jv locations utilized by the Target Suhjcct_x,, I will consider the use.
3| of search warrants and will undoubtedly use search warrants at the end of the investigation when
4 | the risks associated with a search warrant are reduced.
5 Trésh Searches
6 91, On February 8, 2013, I 'spoke with a customer service representative from Athens Services
7| in regirds to the trash colléction services for 127°S. Garfield Avenue, Monterey Park, California,
g | YU's business and 513 W. Ralph Street, San Gabriel, California, an address associated with YU. 1
g § I'was infirmed that waste management does the waste collection for 513 W, Ralph Street, San

10 Gabriel, Califormnia cvery Fi'id‘.’l}*-b‘t:t&\f&t%ﬂ 6:00 am and 5:00 pm and that waste.manﬂgment does

5 the witkte collection for 127 8. Ga:ﬁcid- Avenue, Monterey Park, California every Tuesday and

12 Friday between 6:00 am:and-5:00 pm.

131 92 0n February 15,2013, T went to 127 S, Garfield Avenuo, Monterey Park, Califoriato

14 evaluate the possibility of a trash pull. At approximately 8:50 am, agents arrived at 127°S.

15 Garficld Avenue and | observed a community dumipster behind the business that is used by

16 multiple busitesses. | determined that a trash pull to gather additional information regearding

17 YUs activitivs would ‘.yickl limited results. This is because it would be difficult to determine

18 which rsh came from YU's. business due to the multiple businesses that use the same dumpster.

19 Altemping o trash pull conld also compromise the ongoing investigation of YU, as several people

20 were present in the arca, [T eircumstances change, ! may consider conducting a trash search in the

21 future, but believe it is too risky for little likely benefit at present.

2 93. On the sanw date, af approximately 9:05 am, I went to 513 W. Ralph Street, San Gabriel,

23 Califuimia 10 v aluate the possibility of a trash pull. [ observed one trash can full of trash placed

. on the steeet i front of the residence. 1 observed that the street in front of the residence is very

24 narrow and several people were up early and walking around ncar the residence. If agents had

25 attempted 1o pall the rasly at this time, one of the neighbors might have seen agents and relayed

26 that infarmation back 1o YU I determined that the benefit of condueting a trash pull o attempt to

& gather adiditional information regarding YU's activities would not outyveigh the risks from doing

; - g0, 1 will consider conducting a trash search in the future, given better circumstances, even
| Affidavit - \r\?iiclap #13-310 L
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though | have little confidence a trash search would farther this investigation in a substantial
i T

84, On April 22,2013, 1 accessed the City Of Long Beach Waste Management website to
inquire about the trash collection date for 836 E. Anaheim Street, Long Beach, California. The
wehbsite revealed that (he trash for the business is collected every Friday.

95. On April 22, 2013, F'went to KS JEWELRY STORE to conduet surveillance nd to
evaliate the possibility'of a trash pull. At approximately 8:20 am, agents arrived at the street
address o KS JEWELRY STORE. I observed that the businass was closed and the doors and a
gate wore fovhed. §also observed several surveillance cameras attached to the outside of the-
building. | determined that & trash pull o gather additional information regarding LAY's
activities vould would be too risky, as any activity would likely beé recorded by the surveillance
cameras sflixed to the outside of the business, Atlempting a trash pull could campromise the
ongoing investigamion ol LAY, 1fcircumstances change, [ may consider conducting a trash
search in the future, but believe it 18 too risky for little likely benefit at present.

96. Additinnally, f will continue to explore the idea of conducting trash searches on locstions
associnted with additional Tavget Subjects inthe future, However, there are risk§-associated
with tish scarches wisieh must be weighed when considéring this investigative tool, Getting out
of cuts und pulling trash from the residence of the targets would arouse more suspicion than
simply siting in s surveillance vehicle. T have considered working with the trash collection
service.in an ¢fMort 1o obitain the trash of the Target Subjects, FHowever, doing so creates a risk
that the investigation will be disclosed to the targets. Trash services workers are not law
enforcement olficers und de not go through a vetting process in which assessmients are made
regarding their ability. 1o maintain secrecy in ongoing criminal investigations. There is even a risk
of emplaying e ussistanee of non-law enforcement government workers to obtain information
for wenming! ovestigation, i general, the chance of disclosure of an investigation increases
witl b erester number ol people who are aware of the investigation. As it relates o the trash
pull, T convered tiat asking trash services workets to seize the trash of my 'l‘-urget'Sul'Jj:_eets
will iserease Use risk thae the Target Subjeets will learn they are being investigated. This would

result in wedously jropardizing my investigation and potential place me, and other law
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enlorcement agents, at risk of harm as targets who are aware that they are under investigation

may prepare o resist searches or arrests by arming themselves,

97. Additionally, even if ] determine that a trash search can be dorie without arousing

1 suspiion, Ddo pat believe that 8 trash search will provide law enforcement with evidence that
L will safisly the gouls of the investigation. Even when trash s removed without detection; if is
unlikely e yich! signilican! evidenee sufficient to achieve the gosls of this investigation without

~the requested wiretap, | have found that drug traffickers go (o great lengths to destroy possibly

incriminating evidence and will rarely use their resideénce trash containers to dispose of

1oinformation, From my tmiining and experience, T know that it is notuncommon for traffickersto

carry-teidén avay frdm (el residences and place it into commereial dumpsters to'avoid having it

- examined hy law enforcement, Tt is trud that on oceasion, evidence of drug trafficking may be

obtained from s druy teafficker's trash, However, the type of evidence that is typicaily obtained

- will mot satiady the goals of the conspiracy.

0% A pole camera is wsuryeillance camera installed on a'telephone pole or fixed object within
elose proximity to a target’s home which linw enforcement is able to monitor from a remote
lowidie,

9y Psle cameras are also only able to capture what is in its direct view and therefore are
Faited Lo tacie ability to capture what is happening, for example, inside a particular business or
buitding. While pule cameras have proven useful in identifying individuals and pattems, it is
difTicult to know whether people are picking up contraband or just doing normal business. This
has proven 1o be tie case, when we stopped YU and did not find contraband in her vehicle,
Furtwrmore, although 1 will continue to consider the use of a pole. camera if a good opportunity
prosenis tself, even many pole cameras will not enable faw enforcement to achieve the goals of
thi: fnvessiguiion. For exomple, a pole camera will not allow investigators to determine the
pirics nnd idtentiving infhrmation of subjects involved in this organization or the nature of their

insely e e o the organization. A pole camera is also unable (o penetrate further into an

Addisenal sdormation related to Stationary Surveillanco Cameérag is contained in the confideatial Hobbs
Attedlgmeny of e a0 basil,
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1 | organizsiion and many important members of the conspiracy likely would not make personal

2 | appearunces i, tor example, a Target Subject’s residence or a money drop location.

3

4

_ 100, On March 6, 2013, a Federal Pen Register and Trap and Trace device order (CR No,

‘5__ 13-0070SM) way signed by Judge Jay C. Gandhi for telephone numbers 917-250-5482 (used by

-6€ YT, 323-793-4749 (used by HYLA), and 626-614-6457 (used by another unidentified money

7 | courier), On March 6, 2013, the installation was completed t&ry'(fcllcﬁ dba Verizon, T-Mabile and

3 the' DEA Tech Ops Ciroup. Subsequent to installation, it appears that all three phone numbers

¥ stopped betig used il haye provided no useful information. This expired sixty days from the

10 date of activation,

l:]' 101, On Maren 22, 2013, a Federal Pen Register and Trap and Trace device order (CR No.

12 13-0892M) was signed by .S, Magistrate Judge Ralph Zarefsky for Target Telephone #1. On

13 March 22: 2013, the insinllation was completed by T-Mobile and the DEA Technical Operations |
14 Group. Ageats had suceeds in receiving incoming and outgoing messaging data from Target |
15 Telephone #1. The expired sixty days from the date of activation,

16 102 On April 23, 2013, a Federal Pen Register and Trap and Trace device order (CR No.

W78 12 0179000 was sizacd by Judpe Jacqueline Chooljian for Target Telephone #1. On April 24,

18 | 2013, the instaltarion was completed by T-Mobile and the DEA Tech Ops Group.

19 103, On Noveriber 20, 2013, a Pen Register and Trap and Trace device order was sigried
20 by 1o Aageles Counds Superior Court Judge The Honorable Henry Barela for Target ;
21§ Telgpdone #1. On Nevenber 21, 2013, the installation was completed by T-Mobile and the DEA '
22 | et vps Gz,
23 (el Agenis huee used and will continue to use subscriber information and telephone toll : E»
24 | recorls, which serve the same purpose of a pen register and trap and trace device, in that tolls | é
25 | providé i difying i ormation regarding calls made to/from a particular telephone and at what §
26 | fregqueney. s soiniloabove, the toll information for Target Telephone #1 has been obtained ?
27 | and has provided idens ving information regarding calls made from the phone and at what
28 1 freaeaes. This technigue, however, has only provided (and will only provide) agents with a list 'i
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i thé nusibers calted and will not establish the identities of all the persons called or the content
ot the conversations. This is particularly so because I know that drug traffickets and narcotics
proceeds conriers ol ulilize fetitious and/or unwitting subscriber information on the
telephinies they use :an attempt to thwart law enforcement investigation of their illegal
activities. Further, wll infurmation cannot identify the nature or substance of conversations, the

identitivs-of the participants, ot their roles in the conspiracy. Nor can this information show the

| nature, methods, and scope of the conspirdcies, the locaﬁbng'_lmejd.,,lhe-.ﬁmﬂ ‘of the criminal

activity, or the source of deugs.
Lo Pwrthermore, [litow that narcolics proceeds couriers (including Target Subjects)
freguently change cell phones in on attempt to hinder law enforcement’s ability to identify and

farget phones used 1o facilitate navcotics trafficking. As a result, by the time agents discern the

identity of mdividuats using particular numbers (which is incredibly time consuming given the

wse al fielitious names and the inability lo know the substance and participants of the
cunversativns). ilividuals have often moved onto using other phone nunibers.  Accordingly, for
all e reasons stated above, pén register, trap and trace, and subscriber information are all
vuluable 1oy estigative tools; bat will not by themselves achieve the overall goals of the
SOVEINM L s investigaion,

106, Finally, i formation gleaned from these tools only shows that two telephones
contacted une smother Steh information is always subject to a claim by the target that he was not
the oy using the wlephone. More importantly, these investigative tools never show the
subistanee o what was discussed at the time the two telephones were used to contact one another.
Su, the evidentiney value that can be derived from these tools is limited, These investigative tools

will simiply ot onaliel own, provide sufficient evidence to satisfy the goals of the investigation.

Literviesys

Fod §a entorocment bas conducted numerous interviews with CI-1. As detailed in the

HOTBS secton un e ase of Conlidential Informants, this confidential informant is limited in

 Additional infortia related to Interviews, Subpovnus and Grants for Immunity are contained in the
ey ol piead Daadabin AL i) Pl'llri.‘\' aimd:w]‘l.
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- higher corde i the oppadizition and thus are limited in the amount of information that they are

et

able to provisde that would aliow agents to fully identify the activities of the Target: Subjects and
b co-conpinors. Tnierviews have yielded some valuable information, such as the
Rlentilieatons of "I'ntiel Subjects, phone numbers, and locations for money drops, Law
enfireement wiil contaie o work-with corifidential sources and use interviews to obtain updated
eontact information for I'arget Subjects and additional money. drop locations.

| Interviews with suspeets have also provided limited information, as the couriers have

i limited role and intirmation {s compartmentalized. The information attained through inferviews

Y 0NN R W B LN

will sot st B enlareemen to penetrate deeper into the organization or satisfy the goals of the

| B eslipation,

—_—
o

itk tased oy training and experience and knowledge of this investigation, I further

-
b

12 | Plivve i additionat mierviews of the Target Subjects and other members of the enterprise
13 [ weated not produce suticient information to identify all of the persons involved in the conspiracy;

H preteens oo to the diug organization would have useful information. [ have found that these

2

27 o

(o bopes o people s i1l psually lie to protect themselves and the targets ol the investigation.
“5 | Sk ,
T U 1 depoeticnlis il i 1o e the case during the early stages of an investigation when fio one

;l g0 ol pucgie aie vory likely o tip off the targets of the investigation. 1have also found that

14 § hesmaces o vontrollad substunees: the proceeds to be laundered; or the location of records, :

s | w0 ntralle.. substances, and other pertinent information regarding the aforementioned offenses. f

16 Ever: i | were able o aseertain the identities of all of the Target Subjects and approach thern,

17 they swould likely povide only false exculpatory statements. I have already seen thisin the case

18 af Laterviews with Vil und TING, Uncharged drug traffickers and narcotics money distributors

19 are ot vping e be soclived o sit down with a DEA agent and lay out the details of their drug

20 | Poatheant vrpandzston. fven if they did, large drug trafficking organizations like the one that is

21 | e abyesct of thas cnvesngation are so compartmentalized (as illustrated by the CSs® involvement)

2 | thata sty et o sien o lew people would be unlikely to have the global knowledge and
| evidencx cuensary o satisly the goals of the investigation.

" l |14, Purthive isterviewing people who have active roles in a drug trafficking organization

z: | is @ sure was oF alciung the inembers of the organization that they are under investigation. Only
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PH Joghis e o inguiry has yet been conducted by a federal grand jury in relation to

e et o dnte e Terget Subjects. Based on my experience, and conversations with

senior L A ments hased ugon information provided by Assistant United States Attorheys who
nave experience prosecuting violations of criminal law and the specific crimes set forth in this

affidaxii, subpoenuin s persans believed to be involved in this «conspiracy or their known

| associntes before o Lederal grand jury would not be completely successful in achieving the stated

goals ol th:: invesiivwion I any of the principals of this conspiracy, their co-conspirators,
agsociate o other idipants were called to testify before the grand jury or asked 1o provide
interviev. s they v dd st likely invoke their Fifth Amendment privilege to not testify, It
wourkt Feoowise nooseek sy kind of immunity for those persons because the granting of such
i et Boseelens prusecution of the most culpable members of this conspiracy and could
not eesie dal sueh imnueized witnesses would provide truthful lestimony..

P00 Addidonally, agonts have not yel identified any individuals, other than the CSs,
whose limiations b been detailed, who are considered likely to provide information about the
Pargut Sul'vets s ! il v eriminal activities without revealing the investigation to their criminal
assoos e i peo e that sueh individuals will eventually be identified, particularly through
the fntetoeroon e ire ansiunications, but it would be detrimental to attempt to subpoena or
faters o waesse ot Ll stage of the investigation, The service of grand jury subpoenas on the
princip o ceaspiaey or their co-conspirators, or requesting that they submit to interviews
by luw vistercement ageis, swould only alert them to the existence of this investigation, causing
them 1o becsang pege canlivns in thelr aclivities, (o flee to avoid further investigation or
progecntion. to tuc.on the =ty of confidential sources or informants or undercover agents, or
GhePise O en e nvestigation, Moreover, a grand jury investigation, or interviews of
the Targr Subjects wr dicir associates, would not be successful in exposing the full nature and
scope ot e crimaon aen Ty, or the identities of all the participants, It is reasonable to expect
that e s ocal oowle oL ach as drugs, records, or drug proceeds, would be destroyed or
hidd.: - oariie gt e prand jury or law enforcement agents were secking information.

Addition sy, e tential 1o violence associated with drug traffickers also acts as a significant
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deterrent 1. curine not aly testimony, but truthful testimony, from any potential grand jury

WHNESSeS o Tnfery iy i i ipants,

H2 Baged vnomy nining and experience and in conversations with senior agents;
interviews would sot be vllective. If we weré to intetview a member of the Asian money courier
orgunizatios it is Tikely they would lie or distort the truth to minimize or cover up their own
mvalyemen: o waeth o ie involvément of other membets, The suspects may lie'or décling to
speak tosipe. s, forone o retaliation against themselves or their families. In this investigation,
the Tarpet Subjeets are inked by personal relationships as opposed to merely being linked by
profes. oo glaticcnhip, Ihis leads me 10 believe that they are unlikely to disclose any
informatic. at Wl fuopipdize l}ic_iriclosg__t?;ije_nds;.or.fﬁnﬁly'members.

Lid. Agents are cunvntly coordinating with DEA Financial Anatysts, who are alfempting
o gather evidence reganding Uie linaneial activity of the Target Subjects. On April 8, 2013, 1
sebmited € ond L Buok Subpoenas to Bank of America, Citibank, East West Bank and Wells
Fargo 1o revuiast Duaaciol eecords for YU, JERSON TRADE, and other associates of the Target

CoSubjevis U Aprd M, 43, | submitted a Grand Jury Bank Subpoenato Catha}} Bank to request

T cal records o LAY wd his wife Helline Tan.

I have ooviesd several financial reports from law enforcement databases, which
have assisted uy 1l identitcution of several bank accounts associated with Target Subjects, and
brought 1o (gt mere inlonation related to LAY, YU, NGUYEN, JERSON TRADE, KS
JEWELRY STORE an) MGOC BICH JEWELRY. While these reports were helpful, they do

Conetwllow s oats ande s stuad the details of the activities. Investigators have been unable to fully

o——

wherdiiy wo s aseid or v ocaed by the Target Subjects, particularly given the fact that many of
Farget sudgeets e o Tilly identified. In addition, drug traffickers often keep-assets in the
s v ominees weontro! their interest and control in those assets. Agents will ¢ontinue to
investigi - ¢ fincs il solliags of LAY, YU, NGUYEN, JERSON TRADE, KS JEWELRY
STORI. iti0xC 1:CN W IELRY, and other co-conspirators during this investigation. These
investiyit « feads will eoatinue 1o be pursued for evidentiary value — for example, cash deposits

oz withdravess o certiin & es might provide corroborative evidence of discussions obtained

42
Affidavit — Wiretap #13-310

ettt o o

s N e el RS R A Rty



g2

£ W

tr

9

10

17
18
19

from this wire interception ~ but to date agents have found limited benefit from said information.

116, From my training and experience, more bank accounts exist that have not been ful%y

idéntificd. As the investivation progresses, 1 have continued to identify additional people

assoeialéd to the Target Subjeets, whe have been linked to suspicious banking transactions.
Albso, ws mention! carlicr, we continue to identify new couriers, which leads me to believe that

these rew couriers may have bank accounts linked to the activity, in which we have notyet

| Adentifiod. As detailed o the Brief Qverview _of;z’inm'ﬁgaﬁon. LAY, YU, NGUYEN and other
wnidentitiod co-conspiriinss have been obsérved dropping oi’fiargeamounts of currene’y The

cash natyreof these traraclions has meant that law enforcement has had limited success in

identifyine actual lank decounts where this money has come from. T anticipate that with the court
ordefed wiretap, avanls will be intercepting ealls where specific banking information, such as

wevount-and routine nuibers, names onraccounts and also those responsible for depositing illegal

funds

20

21
22

bl

|

2

20
27
"'21"'-

|

P17 Thoswevors < on more detailed financial investigation will not fully satisfy the goals of

the 0w tion bee e e finaneial records will not necessarily provide information about the

| narcotins ele of the coe i wy, such as suppliers, customers, stash houses, and methiods of

operativas, [his i i e sinee drug trafficking is often conducted in cash and traffickers make
congerted =Thts 1o sk fnancial transactions and any connection to the drug trafficking. |

LIS, b adilitiopa ! 'Farget Subjects and their nssociales ore identified, I will consider the
v of Tingaeial Divestip dion echniques, as long as those techniques will not disclose the
presente ot e bneer investigation,

Public Records Searches

117 Duisi v conese of this investigation, agents have used multiple public databases to
facdice des cop i . regarding the Target Subjeets and other co-conspirators involved in
this fuve Beation. <ae vl public databases has been useful in providing agents with
fornna s e St Tasget Subjeets to include: occupants of residences, utility subscriber
lormutivn. cid ity owschers und associates of the Target Subjects,

§200 1 et pible Liabases to further identify associates of JERSON TRADE. Public
cecond st s o caled tha YU is the President of JERSON TRADE. The same public records
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reveated tat ol TING amd 1IN are associated with JERSON TRADE. 1 also used public
pevords s ebes e iden s adividuals asseciated with KS JEWLERY STORE and NGOC BICH
JENCFLIES -

PN cookine ol sosial media websites, [ was able to find Facebook accounts for TING
and LANL By fooiing o their | acebook profiles, I was able to link TING and LIN as well as other
associates. LIN posed oo re of himself and the CHALLENGER, which | identified as the
s et dhat we aalled W GPS tracking device. Using a.combination of GPS data gathered
N adsiosses e ene L by she CHALLENGER and comparing LIN's Facebook friends, [ was
wble ooty Lot e e of LING TThave not yet determined if this associate is involved in
divgal aot dcs aas so shile o locate a Facebook page for HYLA. HYLA posted several
phe s et e et oo his Facebiook page; these photos were useful in allowing agents to access (o
ap-tosdite photos ot sl et inidentifying HYLA as opposed to just using official photographs
foe arg oftein it ik capture the face of the target,

1220 Ca A, i <03, Southern California Edison responded to utility records subpoenas
Teari iy Y suese e atormation for YU and JERSON TRADE, The utility records listed
Yus e aboender T L Hoselyn Lane and 127 8. Gartield. The utility records also listed
Son Tax W AN et Pauline AN as the utilities subscribers for 513 W. Ralph Street.

POV D e aese ol public records has been useful in identifying names of people
BRSOt o0 B cdiess o wtsocintes of the Target Subjects, they only provide agents with basic
cotaibsand oot s apens to understand in-depth the activities conducted by the targets.

Ched e teiaben e e i e depth details about the narcotics proceeds remittance activitics or
acoses talbekivg i s or the Target Subjects or other co-conspirators. Although there
wie It vt non e anailable from public records, T expect to continue to use public
Gabihises o the fateie toacnndy new targets and to update information on existing targets such
i thetr eostdenes v andis e

Other Wiretap Evidence

Sl L coorent i avare of any other wirelap investigations which can provide

Cbvemiation o ocnndoes oo Taozet Subjeets. Although other wiretaps could be extremely useful,

ot throticl Lo e, o B Loeepted communications will agents begin to fully understand the

44
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SCOpe Gl s o st atie s sctivity and the conneetions with other investigations and
O.cwmivabe s e ity wiretaps are the only way to hold the leaders and key
pewipants e the v gt s aecountable for their roles. I know of no investigative techniques,
aside fromy wiretaps, waet woeuld allow agents to satisfy the goals of the investigation.

120 Forthiese ceseas intereeption of Target Telephone #1 will help investigators gain
evidenee against the o wel Subjects and any other co-conspirators. Accordingly, imcrception

of Turget Teleptune it iv.onecessary step (o fully accomplish the goals of this investigation.

VIL
DURATION OF ER ION

Llbe ddes Adisiovae s usupport of an Application to intercept wire and electronic

SO RCations e od e el not 1o exceed 30 (thirty) days commencing on the day of the
witind wlereeplion vr ©a 2 He) days after the issuance of the Court’s Order, whichever
cotes lirse, the tocta sl Lonth in his AfTidavit establish that the Target Subject(s) and their
woeiates are eiigaged e ontinuing eriminal enferprise and that the evidence sought will be
mtereepled an g contim s ass following the first receipt of the particular communications that
ae the subrect o s regeoeat, Further, the facts and circumstances get forth above establish
orobabile cause t bebeve addidonal communications of the same type will occur until persons
invedved il s v beceone aware of the existence of (his investigative technique. The goal

S iisCaienation s v the tull seope, membership and methods of operation of the
COn e e L request wiei o ‘ourt order that the interception not terminate when the
conatiestiens de el o e are first intercepted, but may continue until the full scope of the
Cown st b decloped, o candiayg the identities of all participants, their places and methods of
st aned ti sarfou ities in which they are engaged in furtherance of the enterprise, or
o the (b periont o M iy day s, whichever comes first, | further request that the SWB-4

cxvetthe sech Oner et distong an intereeption and listening post in Los Angeles County.,

VIIL
MINTMIZATION

e tecanreine o+ oparding the minimization of interception will be strictly followed.

a5
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sreinterveption be e g meeting will be held for all monitoring agents, wherein the
requiremunts of minimic ot 0 set oul by the supervising case agent will be given. A
mearandum regarding i nization will be provided to all monitoring agents, as-well as a copy
ol e Application. AT Livit, and the Court Order authorizing interception. A copy. of the
Asplication. Allidavit e ¢ onrt Order and a minimization memorandum will be posted at the
listening wite: Phefore an uzdal or monitor beginsto intercept communications, he/she wi__l_i‘lsign a

“orm Iadsesting tint hefshe has read the Application, Affidavit, the Count's Order authorizing

inteeeption; o0l the il sization memorandum, and he/she is familiar with the contents of these

b waente wontereip ol communications will be in compliance with the Court's Order,

12% Wire o mivatons will be minimized in accordance with California-State Law
(Sevtion 2280 i e Per ol Cade). DEA agents, state officers, and/or certified monitors wiil
v e e monitoring o all svire communications (o determine iFa party to a conversation is a
ot piratoer o susperled sanspinator. Monitoring will be discontinued if, while making this
ideraification, e munitae Jelemiine the conversation does not involve the Target Subjeci(s) or
the 1 geted eripnonl sens iy, 15 monitoring is discontinued, monitors will spot check the
coitvassationio order o dewenuine whether the conversation becomes pertinent to-the Target
Susject{a) or the targew . eohmioal getivity,

o hisanticd e that seime of the conversations to be intercepted will be in Kher.
s et oot Idoeerss oo aeditts, olficers, and monitors who are authorized to conduct the
Gl sl tono e wire conversations will be recorded, and all recordings will be
ety presercod, Logs o 1 Le prepared regarding the date and time of calls, the parties

invoned, e subuaeids o e catls, and 1 and when minimization occurred.

IX.
CONCLUSION

Vs, Based unomy iraining and experience, the only viable means by which to

' Build i preswetable case o ainst thiy Target Organization is through intercepted communications

Cvt U asteuniaits e e Larget Subjeat(s) use, including Target Telephone #1.

I, 3% wiahe - doroation furnished to me and my training and experience in narcotics
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O i Suprenie Come decsion i People v, Hobbs (1994) 7 Cal.4™ 948, and Peaple v.

12
13
14

(5 |

O 6 ) & W B

1

|

16

17
18
19

20
21 ;

22

o

ain v ST

23 |

24
25

26

e o o assert o e e s prabable cause to believe that the Target Subject(s) have

Gt altie i carnith 2 L are aboul 1o commit the crimes of H.8. 11370.6(a): Possession

1| el homey or busgument ver $100,000, H.S. 11370.9(a): Proceeds Derived from Controlled
- Satlsrnee Offenses and 1 €1 192(aj(1): Conspiracy to Commit a Crime: The facts of this

mvestigation show the es stence ol u conspiracy to distribute narcotics by delivering narcotics
proveeds, Based on my b ouwledpe of this investigation, the Target Subject(s) and othier members
ol ke Parget Qrganizatooo wall continue this illegal activity until stopped by law enforcement.
PY 1 reuest that Lie portion of this affidavit designated as the “HOBBS ATTACHMENT”
bt v dered cd implbanent the privilegeunder Evidence Code Sections 1040 to 1042, and to

Pt i B sdeintizy wl an coatidenbal nformants and/or official infom&!iom_pursuamlo‘lhe.

dveredo QUE2 Cal.App: L1314 1058). [f any of the information within the requested sealed
portione of this ol Gdav it iv nace public, it will réveal or tend to reveal the identity of any
comfidenial istocoants Lol Furthier related investigations, and endanger the lifé of any
covn lente b andpanis. e request that the sealed portion of the affidavit be kept in my
cistecty i 'er e DEA p oo Jutthier order of the court,

Lio coemission s leochy requested (o intercept wire and electronic communications
vk caaded wpnner wiloae e ot Larget Telephone(s) used by the individuals named herein
an Ly Coreon e W later identified.

134 | regucsi 1h Speing Nextel Corporation, Neéxtel Communications, Pacific Bell
Lelepiznw Uang v viend Eelephione Company, T-Mobile, Nextel Communications, Verizon
adecless Sabilos i, ot POS, AT&T Wireless, Pac Bell Wireless, Pagenet, MetroCall,
Voo A ahi e wand aey o e aidected telecommunication entity (hereinafter referred to as the
|oee i ica s Comy o) shiall, upon request of law enforcement, authorize the

cuathodon s ese o eguiime d knosvn as pen registers or dialéd number recorders to detect
comd o coede ol e ai sd by the telephones connected 1o the targeted numbers.
Coowlly b caestal oo or e of cquipment to trap and trace Direct

e DI e ceoime « oo caliiy the telephone numbers of persons placing calls to and

it e Pt o deplioco o atisters, | additionally request the installation and/or use of trap
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cquiptrent Lot o and ety e teiephone numbers of persons placing calls to the Target

5 Te phonet=) 1+ inctude the werivation of “caller ID™and my,-_-.caiﬁug- features such as *call

3 " orvearcie an.d umeed i 0 currently dssigned to the Target Telephone(s).

4 3§, 1 ingaent s Court to order the Telecommunications Companies, upon requést of
5 . U anbereement to pros e the fechnical assistance necessary to accomplish this interception

6 | wneherusively o with o s i of interference with the services said company provides the
7 PeOp v amuniciHuns an: o be intercepted, and to provide records identifying

& - ubscibers ol novidine subsenl7 information onvany and all telephone and pager numbers

10
i i

2
13
14
15

16

17
18

19 |

20
21

oilepuified i e i e e o reeister, and any-changed numbers whether published or not,
ch ang bat e e ited o et tephone bills and récords. [n.addilion.[wqucstﬂﬁ‘sﬂoun o
crder the Totoa g o o panies 0 provide any and all information re]atec_lltoa_x_x_y-

telepdronuisy, po

{1 0o sy ng deviees, cellular/wireless telephones, calling cards, and
et i LHon do ¢omlacting or b_cing ccmacted-ﬁy v.hc'l‘argct DéViC@S(S)Bnd,!hB

Eogudvroiber b o any sue oo Sntion devices(s).  Such information shall include, but not be
Pk e coabers o con s associated with the primary number/account, service and
if

SHBEn et o ccebiled sl unl ULy, activation date, credit information, co-signer
] cAoriaton o taddes st 2 elephone number(s), call identification information whether
| peblled cones o Ushe | Gdelba! Positioning System (GPS) data and all information

| gudliviy . Coneeds) such as electronic serial number (ESN), international
pobite sol oot Gt v mtermational mobile equipment identifier (IMEI), subscriber
Aot nedade r f3 e e and all eneryption keys/codes or other identifier, including

0 doren e aatecn o withon o o the regquiest, Finally, [ request this Court to order the

22 __; Celecianieas s G 1o provide toll information, including any and all historical data
23 i: neans pecho .‘_t._'-}-.u;:n-.xi s L ervement within 48 hours of the request, call detail, including
- LTEE it cosli=b Tl o ame.on, call records, originating and terminating call detail,
- Cob Posteen e o o onnastion, extended dialed digit information, dialed digit

22 j oo CORC it it (rom any.and all telephones calling to or being called by
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Eio. o sl peests the Court to.order the Telecommunications Compariies not to
discoss o the subseribe arany arsnthorized person, the fact that the Order has-authorized this
wing intereeplion, or el . canteinie,

137, Vouratlian: alo reguests that this intercept be maintained for thirty days,

| comencing o the day oi'ihe inilial interception or ten days after the issuance of the Court’s

Order, whichever coities Hest, and U llu:"intérﬁe;if-n'ot-'automaliqﬂl'i}"_tﬂ‘miﬁateim'iht
deseribed type o commuinication has been first obtained.. meafﬁmtrequwssthatﬁmntempt
b o o ectinne nedl e full seope of the conspiracy, and the persons involved and their
respective roles o i e b od i the Tull thitty days, whickevercomes first.

138, I st tveeested that this Application, Aﬁd&vit‘Rewew‘O:dm's), and

angfet] inverporated doe o it rachments, and/or exhibits be ordered sealed and keptin the

custo tyor the 1AL 1o Te i ietnsad sy upon a showing of good cause before a court of

wot, tond juisdienon, pusosart o Penal Code Section 629.64 and 629.66.

bt b andder peacslie af parjuey under the Jaws of the State of California that the

Lusigan st (4 e whasore i L teat s Afﬁdﬂ?it was exccuted in Riwmidecollﬂty, Cﬂ!ifomiﬂ.

- ; ; P > \/',\7
Dol Devember 12 01 Q’/‘d\_ [ C/
Spécial Agent Jesse E. Odum
Drug Enforcement Administration
Los Angeles Field Division

Swor ant S s bed beloaw e oo Deeember é ,2013

Gl

HONORA HELIOS J. HERNANDEZ
Riverside ty Superior Court
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PROOF OF SERVICE
STATE OF CALIFORNIA, COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO:

I am employed in the County of Los Angeles, over the age of eighteen and not a party to this
action. My business address is One Wilshire Boulevard, Suite 2200, Los Angeles, California 90017.

On August 14, 2015, I served the foregoing document described as Defendant Koan You Lay’s

Motion to Suppress, etc., on the interested parties in this action as follows:

Deputy District Attorney Mallory Miller
316 N. Mountain View
San Bernardino, CA 92415

[By causing hand delivery]

Law Firm of Jonas & Driscoll
1108 Sartori Avenue, Suite 320
Torrance, CA 90501

[By FedEx]

Steven Graff Levine

1112 Montana Avenue, Suite 309
Santa Monica, CA 90403

[By FedEx]

John-Paul Serrao

9227 Haven Avenue, Suite 320
Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91730
[By FedEx]

Lee Sonnenberg

Deputy Public Defender

8303 Haven Avenue, 3 Floor
Rancho Cucamonga, CA

[By FedEx]

This Proof of Service is executed on August 14, 2015, at Los Angeles, California. I declare
under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the above is true and correct.

-

" Michasl . Artan

PROOF OF SERVICE FOR MOTION TO SUPPRESS WIRETAP EVIDENCE






